
 

 
Dear Councillor 
 
The next meeting of the LICENSING Committee will be held at 6.30 pm on TUESDAY, 
1 NOVEMBER 2022 in the Council Chamber. 
 
I do hope you can be there. 
 
Yours sincerely 

 
 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
  
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
 

 
2.   TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS 

MEETING 
 

(Pages 3 - 6) 

 
3.   DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY, 

OTHER REGISTRABLE AND NON REGISTRABLE 
INTERESTS 
 

 

 Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
disclosable pecuniary, other registrable or non-registrable 
interest in respect of matters contained in the agenda. 
  

 

 
4.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 
 

 
ITEMS FOR DECISION 
 

 
 
5.   NATIONAL REGISTER OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND 

PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER REVOCATIONS (NR3) POLICY 
 

(Pages 7 - 16) 

 Report of Chief Executive enclosed. 
 

 
 
6.   TAXIS AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES DISABLED 

PERSONS ACT 2022 
 

(Pages 17 - 102) 

 Report of the Chief Executive enclosed. 
 

 
 
7.   HACKNEY CARRIAGE SIGNAGE 

 
(Pages 103 - 106) 

 Report of the Chief Executive enclosed. 
 
 
 

 

 

Public Document Pack



 

ITEMS FOR INFORMATION 
 

 
 
8.   HACKNEY CARRIAGE FARES UPDATE 

 
(Pages 107 - 108) 

 Report of the Chief Executive enclosed. 
 

 
 
9.   TAXI/PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENSING OPERATION 

 
(Pages 109 - 110) 

 Report of the Chief Executive enclosed. 
 

 
 
10.   MINUTES OF LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 

 
(Pages 111 - 114) 

 Minutes of the Licensing Sub-Committee meetings of 10 
August 2022 and 22 September 2022 enclosed. 
  
 

 

 
11.   MINUTES OF THE RIBBLE VALLEY EVENT SAFETY 

ADVISORY GROUP (ESAG) 
 

(Pages 115 - 116) 

 Minutes of the Ribble Valley Event Safety Advisory Group 
(ESAG) meeting of 13 October 2022 enclosed. 
 

 

 
12.   REPORTS FROM REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE 

BODIES 
 

 

 None. 
 

 
 
13.   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 
 

 None. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Electronic agendas sent to members of Licensing – Councillor Stella Brunskill JP 
(Chair), Councillor Jan Alcock JP, Councillor Richard Bennett (Vice-Chair), Councillor 
Ian Brown, Councillor Steve Farmer, Councillor Gaynor Hibbert, Councillor Simon Hore, 
Councillor Angeline Humphreys, Councillor Richard Newmark, Councillor Donna 
O'Rourke, Councillor Simon O'Rourke, Councillor Sarah Rainford, Councillor James 
(Jim) Rogerson, Councillor Gary Scott and Councillor Robin Walsh. 
 
 
 
Contact: Democratic Services on 01200 414408 or committee.services@ribblevalley.gov.uk  

mailto:committee.services@ribblevalley.gov.uk


 

 
 

Minutes of Licensing 
 
Meeting Date:  Tuesday, 6 September 2022, starting at  6.30 pm 
Present:  Councillor S Brunskill (Chair) 
 
Councillors: 
 
J Alcock 
R Bennett 
I Brown 
S Farmer 
S Hore 
D O'Rourke 
 

S O'Rourke 
S Rainford 
J Rogerson 
G Scott 
R Walsh 
 

 
In attendance: Head of Legal and Democratic Services and Solicitor 
 
 

266 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for the meeting were received from Councillors A Humphreys, R Newmark 
and G Hibbert. 
  
 

267 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 14 June 2022 were approved as a correct record 
and signed by the Chairman. 
  
 

268 DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY, OTHER REGISTRABLE AND 
NON REGISTRABLE INTERESTS  
 
There were no declarations of disclosable pecuniary, other registrable or non-
registrable interests. 
  
 

269 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
There was no public participation. 
  
 

270 HACKNEY CARRIAGE FARES  
 
The Chief Executive submitted a report seeking Committee approve the review of 
Hackney Carriage fares. 
  
The report explained that Hackney Carriage fares were set by Committee on 10 
August 2006, had last been reviewed in 2017, but that fares had not been increased 
for 16 years. The report noted that the costs of providing the service had increased 
significantly due to a number of factors, particularly the cost of fuel, which was placing 
considerable economic pressure on the Hackney Carriage licence holders. Whilst the 
increase of fares would also impact the public; it was proposed that fares be 
increased to a rate which would reflect the increased costs to drivers but not impact 
too heavily on the public. The proposed fares were set out in the report. 
  

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 

 
 

The matter was to be discussed at the annual taxi meeting scheduled for 21 
September 2022, allowing licence holders to present any consultation responses. 
Going forward it was proposed that fares be reviewed annually. 
  
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE: 
  

1.    Approved the proposed fares set out in Appendix 1 to the report. 
  

2.    Authorise the Head of Legal and Democratic Services to advertise the 
proposed table of fares as required by legislation. 

  
 

271 HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE KNOWLEDGE TEST  
 
The Chief Executive submitted a report proposing the revision of the knowledge test 
undertaken by prospective Hackney Carriage and Private Hire vehicle drivers. 
  
The report explained that the knowledge test was part of the Council’s assessment of 
whether an applicant for private hire or hackney carriage licence was a fit and proper 
person to hold a licence. The knowledge test required applicants to name each and 
every road between locations by the most efficient route, answer questions on where 
a particular landmark is situated, and explain hackney carriage bylaws and the 
highway code.  The applicant had to achieve a minimum number of points on each 
page of the test, and, if unsuccessful, was allowed to re-sit on four occasions but 
would not then be allowed a further attempt for one year. 
  
The report reminded Committee that the knowledge test remained an important part 
of assessing whether an applicant was a fit and proper person to hold a licence and 
ensured that the public could have confidence in the driver’s knowledge and 
efficiency. The purpose of the test was to ensure that applicants had the required 
knowledge and not that they were able to list information. Therefore, it was proposed 
that the knowledge test be amended to include multiple choice questions, which 
required the applicant to select the shortest route between two specified locations, 
and that the applicant be required to achieve a minimum overall score. 
  
It was proposed at the meeting that Committee consider the introduction of drugs 
testing for drivers as a further measure to ensure safety and diligence. Officers 
agreed investigate the subject and report to a future Committee. 
  
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE: 
  

         Authorise the Head of Legal and Democratic Services to revise the 
knowledge tests as set out in the report. 

  
 

272 CHILD SEXUAL EXPLOITATION TRAINING  
 
The Chief Executive submitted a report requesting Committee determine the 
appropriate manner of training required for applicants for Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire driver’s licences in respect of child sexual exploitation (CSE) and 
identifying the signs of CSE. 
  
The report explained that Hackney Carriage and Private Hire drivers licenced by the 
Council were required to have completed a course in respect of safeguarding against 
and identifying the signs of Child Sexual Exploitation. The free course which had 
been provided by Lancashire County Council had been withdrawn. Therefore, it was 

Page 4



 

 
 

proposed that another provider be designated to provide the training, as completion of 
the course remained an important aspect of the licensing process. 
  
It was proposed that the safeguarding course be provided by the Blue Lamp Trust in 
the future, who were an experienced provider to over 100 licensing authorities. The 
report explained the different courses that the Blue Lamp Trust offered for a relatively 
modest fee to applicants, and the considerations Officers had made resulting in the 
recommendation that applicants undertake the virtual classroom course option. It was 
confirmed at the meeting that, when attending the virtual classroom, the course 
provider checked the ID of attendees and ensured the attendee remained visible 
throughout the course. Attendance on the two-and-a-half-hour course costs £25.00. 
  
Committee was also asked to consider implementing a requirement for operators to 
have a nominated trained safeguarding lead. It was suggested at the meeting that 
consideration could be given to appointing an Officer of the Council as safeguarding 
contact to ensure that smaller firms were supported. This option would be discussed 
at the annual taxi meeting scheduled for 21 September 2022. 
  
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE: 
  

1.    That applicants for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire driver’s licences in the 
Ribble Valley attend the virtual classroom provided by the Blue Lamp trust for 
taxi driver safeguarding training and that any consequential amendments be 
made to the Council’s taxi policy and licence conditions. 

  
2.    That Committee authorise the Head of Legal and Democratic Services to 

consult with operators and other interested parties on the introduction of a 
condition requiring each operator to nominate a safeguarding lead and to 
provide for their initial and refresher training. 

  
 

273 TAXI/PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENSING OPERATION  
 
The Chief Executive submitted a report informing Committee of the results of an 
inspection of licensed private hire and hackney carriage vehicles.  
  
The report explained that on 13 June 2022, the Council’s Taxi Enforcement Officer 
had carried out inspections of licensed private hire and hackney carriage vehicles, in 
a joint operation with the Police, and Vehicle and Operator Services Agency. The 
Council’s Taxi Enforcement Officer had inspected six vehicles, which were all found 
to be of the required standard, reflecting positively on the taxi and private hire fleet in 
the Ribble Valley, and providing reassurance to the public regarding their safety and 
comfort. 
 

274 REBUILDING THE UK'S NIGHT-TIME ECONOMY  
 
The Chief Executive submitted a report informing Committee of the principal issues 
considered at a training webinar attended by the Council’s Licensing Enforcement 
Officer on Rebuilding the UK’s Night-time Economy: Recovering from Covid-19 and 
Creating a Safe, Diverse, Thriving Night-time Economy. 
  
The event which had been held on 4 August 2022, included contributions from 
Members and Officers from a number of metropolitan and city authorities and others 
involved in the regulation and promotion of the night-time economy, was a training 
exercise organised by the Public Policy Exchange, and had been a useful 
presentation regarding trends and possible initiatives relating to night-time economy.  
  

Page 5



 

 
 

The report listed the factors highlighted by the training, which were confirmed to be 
national statistics and not specific to the Ribble Valley.  
  
 

275 MINUTES OF LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE  
 
Committee received the minutes of the Licensing Sub-Committee meetings of 6 June 
2022, 14 June 2022, and 11 July 2022. 
  
 

276 REPORTS FROM REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE BODIES  
 
There were no reports from representatives on outside bodies. 
  
 

277 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
There were no items under this heading. 
  
 
 
The meeting closed at 7.01 pm 
 
If you have any queries on these minutes please contact the committee clerk, 
Rebecca Tait rebecca.tait@ribblevalley.gov.uk. 

Page 6



RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
REPORT TO LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 
                                                                                                                                                                       
meeting date: TUESDAY, 1 NOVEMBER 2022 
title: NATIONAL REGISTER OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE 
 DRIVER REVOCATIONS (NR3) 
submitted by: MARSHAL SCOTT – CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
principal author: STEPHEN BARKER – SOLICITOR 
 
1 PURPOSE 
 
1.1 To seek Committee’s approval of the adoption and use of a policy in respect of 

requests for information, disclosure of information and use of information as a result of 
an entry on the National Register of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver 
Revocations (NR3). 

 
1.2 Relevance to the Council’s ambitions and priorities: 
 

• Community Objectives  } 
 

• Corporate Priorities  }  
 

• Other Considerations  } 
 
2 BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 Members’ attention is drawn to a report to this Committee on Tuesday, 10 April 2018, 

explaining the introduction of a voluntary national database, allowing Councils to 
record details of why a taxi or private hire vehicle driver’s licence has been refused, 
revoked, or suspended, and enabling authorities to check new applicants against the 
register.  This voluntary register was proposed by the Local Government Association 
(LGA) as a private Member’s bill which had been seeking to introduce such a register 
had stalled in the House of Commons.  

 
2.2   At the meeting of this Committee on 1 February 2022, Members were updated on the 

parliamentary progress of a replacement private Member’s bill to the same effect. That 
bill was passed and the relevant provisions are to be found in the Taxis and Private 
Hire Vehicles (Safeguarding and Road Safety) Act 2022. 

 
2.3 In 2018, Committee authorised the Head of Legal and Democratic Services to arrange 

for the Council to sign up to the national database and join the National Anti-Fraud 
Network (NAFN) which administers the register. This was carried out, and the Council 
has carried out appropriate checks since the register went live in July 2018.  

 
3 ISSUES 
 
3.1 NAFN have issued guidance on adoption of the register (NR3), which includes a 

template of a policy relating to requests for information, disclosure of information and 
use of information as a result of an entry on NR3, including a template disclosure form. 

 
3.2 The policy has been reviewed and customised to reflect application by Ribble Valley 

Borough Council. The draft policy is attached as Appendix 1. Committee is asked 
formally to approve the adoption of this policy. 

DECISION

The Council aims to be a well-managed 
Council providing efficient services based on 
identified customer needs.

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



 
4 RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
4.1 The approval of this report may have the following implications: 
 

•  Resources – The Council is already a member of NAFN, paying an annual 
membership fee. 

 
•  Technical, Environmental and Legal – No implications identified.  

 
•  Political – No implications identified. 

 
•  Reputation – No implications identified. 

 
•  Equality & Diversity – No implications identified. 

 
5 RECOMMENDED THAT COMMITTEE 
 
5.1 Formally approve the adoption of the Ribble Valley Borough Council policy in respect 

of requests for information, disclosure of information and use of information as a result 
of an entry on NR3. 

 
 
 
 
 
STEPHEN BARKER MARSHAL SCOTT 
SOLICITOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE   
 

For further information please ask for Stephen Barker, extension 3216. 

 

 

Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
REPORT TO LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 
                                                                                                                                                                       
meeting date: TUESDAY, 1 NOVEMBER 2022 
title: TAXIS AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES (DISABLED PERSONS) ACT 2022 
submitted by: CHIEF EXECUTIVE  
principal author: MAIR HILL, HEAD OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 
1 PURPOSE 
 
1.1 To seek Committee’s approval of amendments to taxi policies and procedures as a 

consequence of the provisions of the Taxi and Private Hire vehicles (Disabled Persons) 
Act 2022 (“Act”). 

 
1.2 Relevance to the Council’s ambitions and priorities 
 

• Community Objectives – Consideration of these issues will promote the Council’s    
aim to be a well-managed Council. 

 
• Corporate Priorities -   

 
• Other Considerations -  

 
2 BACKGROUND 

 
2.1 The Act came into force on 28 June 2022.   The Act is intended to ensure disabled 

people receive help and can travel with dignity and confidence and are protected 
against extra charges and fares.  
 

2.2 The Act makes amendments to the Equality Act 2010 to include additional provision 
for the carrying of disabled persons by taxis and private hire vehicles.  The government 
has also issued statutory and non-statutory guidance on the implementation of these 
duties. Details of the main provisions are set out below. 

 
3 ISSUES 
 
3.1 Section 164A sets out the duties of drivers of both hackney carriage and private hire 

drivers which have been hired by a disabled person or by another person who wishes 
to be accompanied by a disabled person. (save where the vehicle is designated as 
wheelchair accessible which is dealt with under Section 165 and is explained further 
below.  The duties of the driver are: 

 
a. To carry the passenger 
b. If the passenger is in or has with them a wheelchair, to carry the wheelchair 
c. If the passenger has with them any mobility aids, to carry the mobility aids 
d. To take such steps as are reasonable to ensure that the passenger is carried in     

safety and reasonable comfort 
e. To give the passenger such mobility assistance as is reasonably required 
f. Not to make or propose to make any additional charge for complying with a duty   

mentioned in paragraphs (a) to (e). 
 
Mobility assistance in this respect does not include a wheelchair or assistance dog 
(which is already dealt with under the Equality Act 2010) 

DECISION 

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



It is an offence for a driver to fail to comply with this duty and person found guilty would 
be liable on summary conviction to a fine not exceeding level 3 on the standard scale 
(£1,000). 

 
3.2 Section 165A include provision for assistance to identify and find a vehicle.  It imposes 

duties on the driver of a private hire vehicle or pre-booked taxi where it has been 
booked by a disabled person or by another person who wishes to be accompanied by 
a disabled person.  Th driver’s duties are: 

 
a) To take such steps as are reasonable to assist the passenger to identify and find the 

vehicle which has been hired 
b) Not to make, or to propose to make, any additional charge for complying with the duty 

mentioned in paragraph (a). 
 
It is an offence for a driver to fail to comply with this duty and person found guilty would 
be liable on summary conviction to a fine not exceeding level 3 on the standard scale 
(£1,000). 

 
3.3 Section 166 of the Equality Act 2010 contains provision relating to exemption 

certificates for driver’s relating to their duties relating to passengers in wheelchairs.  
This has been amended so that it covers Disabled Passengers.  Committee previously 
delegated authority to the Head of Legal and Democratic Services to establish 
provision to deal with such applications and so amendments will be made to that to 
include the changes made and based on the Government statutory and non-statutory 
guidance. 

 
3.4 Section 167 of the Equality Act 2010 contains provision relating to Local Authorities 

holding and publishing lists of wheelchair accessible vehicles.  It was previously 
discretionary; however, the Act makes this mandatory.  This Council resolved in April 
2017 to exercise its discretionary power to maintain and publish such a list and so no 
action will be required in this respect. 

 
3.5 Section 167A of the Equality Act 2010 provides that the operator of a private hire 

vehicle commits an offence by failing or refusing to accept a booking for the vehicle if 
the booking is requested by or on behalf of a disabled person or for a person who 
wishes to be accompanied by a disabled person, and the reason for the failure or 
refusal is –  

 
(i) That the passenger has a disability, or 
(ii) To prevent the driver of the private hire vehicle being made subject to a duty 

which would otherwise be imposed on the driver by section 164A, 165 or 165A. 
 
A person guilty of an offence under this section would be liable on summary conviction 
for a fine not exceeding level 3 (currently £1,000).  It would, however, be a defence to 
this if the operator was able to show that it was reasonable not to have accepted the 
booking due to a lack of suitable vehicles. 

 
3.6 These issues were raised with licenced drivers and vehicles at the Annual Taxi meeting 

in September.  The Council has written to all vehicle and operator licence holders to 
inform them of these additional duties and remind them of their existing duties.  A press 
release will also be sent out which will highlight to the public their rights in this respect 
and where to access the list of disabled accessible vehicles. 

 
3.7 To ensure that drivers have sufficient knowledge and training to enable them to carry 

out their duties fully, it is proposed that training be a requirement for all licence holders 

Page 18



upon renewal of a licence and for all new licence holders.  It is proposed that this 
training be provided by the Blue Lamp Trust.  The training is online and has a cost £40.  
Details of the training can be viewed at the link below: 

 
 https://www.bluelamptrust.org.uk/disability-classroom-course/ 
 
 
3.7 As a result of these changes to legislation it is also necessary to amend the relevant 

sections within the Council’s conditions of licence for Hackney Carriage and Private 
Hire, Drivers, Vehicles and Operators, Infringement Points Scheme and  Private Hire 
and Hackney Carriage Licence Policy.  These amendments have been made in track 
changes and are enclosed at Appendices 1 to 6. 

 
4 RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
4.1 The approval of this report may have the following implications 

• Resources } 
 

• Technical, Environmental and Legal }  
 

• Political }  
 

• Reputation } 
 
•  Equality & Diversity }  

 
 
5 RECOMMENDED THAT COMMITTEE 
 
5.1 Approve and authorise the Head of Legal and Democratic Services to consult upon 

the proposed amendments to: 
 

• Conditions of licence for Private Hire Operators as at Appendix 1 
 

• Conditions of licence for Private Hire Driver’s as at Appendix 2 
 

• Conditions of licence for Hackney Carriage Driver’s as at Appendix 3 
 

• Private Hire Infringement Scheme as at Appendix 4 
 

• Hackney Carriage Infringement Scheme as at Appendix 5 
 

• Private Hire and Hackney Carriage Licence Policy as at Appendix 6 
 
5.2  Approve and authorise the Head of Legal and Democratic Services to consult upon the 

introduction of training on the Equality duties to the requirement for a private hire and 
hackney carriage driver licence.  Such training to be provided by the Blue Lamp Trust. 

 
 
MAIR HILL           MARSHAL SCOTT 
HEAD OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES          CHIEF EXECUTIVE   
 
For further information please ask for Mair Hill, extension 4418. 
MJH/Licensing/1/11/22 

The Council has a duty to ensure 
compliance with the Equality Act 2010.  
Implementing these measures will 
ensure such compliance and enhance 
the service which its licenced drivers 
and vehicles provide to the public.

Page 19

https://www.bluelamptrust.org.uk/disability-classroom-course/


This page is intentionally left blank



 
RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL PRIVATE HIRE OPERATOR’S 

LICENCE 
 

The Council has the power to suspend, revoke or refuse to renew any 
Operator’s licence if any of these standard conditions are not complied 
with. 

 

The Private Hire Operator’s Licence (the “Licence”) 
 

1. The private hire Operator’s license shall be valid from the date of issue 
until 31 January of the following year, unless suspended, revoked or 
surrendered. 

2. All applicants must apply for an enhanced DBS check, the contents of 
which will form part of the process of assessing whether an applicant is a 
fit and proper person. 

3. Upon request the Operator shall produce the Operator’s licence to any 
authorised officer of the Council or Police Officer. 

  
 The Premises 
 

4. The Operator shall: 
(a) ensure that a valid planning consent is in force (when planning 

legislation and/or practice requires it) for the operation, on all the 
premises from which the operation is to be conducted; 

(b) obtain and maintain appropriate public liability insurance in respect 
of any premises, which they use in the course of business. Upon 
request the certificate shall be produced to any authorised officer of 
the Council; 

(c) ensure that the Standard Conditions for private hire Operators, 
vehicles and drivers are available for inspection by members of the 
public at the premises; 

(d) permit any authorised officer of the Council to enter the premises 
for the purpose of inspecting both the premises and/or any relevant 
documentation held there; 

(e) not permit any person who is drunk, or is behaving in a disorderly 
manner, to enter or remain upon the premises in respect of which 
the licence is in force; and 

(f) not permit any person to smoke upon the premises in respect of 
which the licence is in force. 

 
 

Page 21



Drivers/Vehicles 
 
5. The Operator shall not employ, engage, instruct or otherwise use as a 

driver any person who does not have:  
(a) a current UK VOSA driver's licence;  
(b) a current private hire or hackney carriage driver's licence and 

badge; and  
(c) sufficient insurance to protect passengers in the event of claims for 

death or bodily injury. 
6. When, in the course of business, the Operator makes provision for the 

invitation or acceptance of bookings for a private hire vehicle, the Operator 
shall (save where the booking is to be sub-contracted to an Operator in an 
area outside of the Ribble Valley pursuant to section 55A of the Local 
Government (miscellaneous provisions) Act 1976) ensure that all services 
are provided by vehicles and drivers in respect of which a current and 
valid licence has been issued by Ribble Valley Borough Council (whether 
the Operator makes provision by use of private hire vehicle(s) or hackney 
vehicle(s) and/or driver(s)). 

7. The Operator shall not service, maintain or repair any private hire vehicle 
on a public street. 

 
Records 
 

8. The Operator shall maintain at the premises particulars of all vehicles 
operated under their Operator’s licence, which shall include the following: 

 
(a) The call sign or other identifying mark used on booking records; 
(b) The licence plate number; 
(c) The registration number; 
(d) The name and address of the proprietor; 
(e) The names and address(es) of driver(s); and 
(f) The badge number(s) of the driver(s) employ, engaged, 

instructed or otherwise used by the Operator. 
 

Upon request the above records shall be produced to or made available 
for inspection to any authorised officer of the Council or to a Police Officer. 

 
9. The Operator shall, at the time of booking and before the commencement 

of each journey, enter on to the record sheets (available from Ribble 
Valley Borough Council) details of the private hire booking.  The details 
shall include: 

(a) the time and the date of the booking; 
(b) the method by which the booking was received, i.e. telephone or 

personal call; 
(c) the collection, destination and drop points of the journey; 
(d) the name of the person making the booking;  

Page 22



(e) the registration number, private hire vehicle or hackney carriage 
licence number or call sign, identifying the vehicle used for the 
booking; and  

(f) the name or call sign of the driver. 
 

10. Where a booking is to be sub-contracted to an Operator in an area outside 
of the Ribble Valley pursuant to section 55A of the Local Government 
(miscellaneous provisions) Act 1976) the Operator must keep and if 
requested produce records of any sub-contracted booking as will allow the 
Council to reasonably investigate any booking as if it had not been sub-
contracted. 
 

11. If the licence plate number or call sign is used for the records referred to in 
condition 7 and 8 above, then a record detailing the vehicle registration 
number and the plate number or call sign allocated to it and/or the drivers 
name and the call sign or badge number allocated to them, must be 
displayed at the Operator’s premises. 

 
12. The records shall be kept for a period of not less than twelve months from 

the date of the last entry or such longer period as required by an 
authorised officer of the Council and upon request must be produced to 
and/or made available for inspection to any authorised officer of the 
Council or to a Police Officer. 

 
13. The Operator must ensure that all computer records are capable of being 

printed, and must make provision for this to take place upon request by 
any authorised officer of the Council or Police Officer.  

 
Insurance 
 

14. The Operator shall ensure that an appropriate certificate of motor 
insurance covers every vehicle operated by him/her under the Licence. 
The certificate must be produced upon request to any authorised officer of 
the Council or Police Officer. 

 
Information as to charges 
 

15. An Operator of a private hire vehicle must not invite or accept bookings for 
any licensed private hire vehicle or control or arrange a journey to be 
undertaken by such vehicle without first informing the person making the 
booking, either orally or in writing, of the basis of charge for the hire of the 
vehicle. 

 

Page 23



 
 
Statement of fares 
 

16. The Operator shall, if so required, ensure that a statement of fares (in a 
form previously submitted to and approved by the Council) is fitted and 
maintained in each licensed private hire vehicle operated under the 
Licence and in the Operator’s premises, in such a position as to be clearly 
visible at all times to the person making the booking. This statement shall 
clearly show the following: 

(a) the minimum charge of each hiring (if any); 
(b) the fare tariff; 
(c) the retention charge per minute or portion thereof; and  
(d) any additional charges. 

 
Interference with equipment 
 

17. The Operator shall not interfere with any equipment, including a taximeter, 
if fitted, attached to or forming part of his licensed private hire or hackney 
carriage vehicles. 

 
Standard of service 
 

18. The Operator shall provide a prompt, efficient, civil, orderly and reliable 
service to members of the public at all times and for this shall in particular: 

(a) ensure that when a private hire vehicle has been hired to be in 
attendance at an appointed time and place, the vehicle shall, 
unless delayed or prevented by sufficient cause,  attend at the 
appointed time and place; 

(b) keep clean, adequately heated, ventilated and lit any premises 
which the Operator provides and to which the public has access, 
whether for the purposes of booking or waiting; 

(c) ensue that any waiting area provided by the Operator has adequate 
seating facilities; 

(d) ensure that any telephone facilities and radio equipment provided 
are maintained in a sound condition and that any defects are 
repaired promptly; 

(e) respond fully to any complaints as soon as reasonably possible; 
and 

(f) ensure that office staff employed by the Operator act in a civil and 
orderly manner at all times. 

Animals 

19. An Operator must not fail or refuse to accept a booking for the vehicle 

Page 24



(a)  if the booking is requested by or on behalf of a disabled person 
or a person who wishes to be accompanied by a disabled 
person, and 

(b) the reason for the failure or refusal is that the disabled person 
will be accompanied by an assistance dog1. 

20. A operator must not make an additional charge for carrying an 
assistance dog which is accompanying a disabled person. 

21.  If an Operator does not comply with its obligations set out in 19 and 20 
above it will be liable to a fine on summary conviction of Level 3 on the 
Standard Scale, currently £1,000. 

 
Disabled Passengers 
 

22. An operator must not refuse to accept a booking for a private vehicle if the 
booking is request by or for a disabled person or a person who wishes to 
be  accompanied by a disabled person ad the reason for the failure or 
refusal is: 

(a) That the passenger has a disability, or 
(b) To prevent the driver of the private hire vehicle being made subject 

to a duty which would otherwise be imposed on the driver by 
Sections 164A, 165 or 165A of the Equality Act 2010. 
  

23. If an operator does not comply with this they are liable to a fine on 
summary conviction of Level 3 on the standard scale, currently £1,000. 

 
Change of name and address 
 

22.24. The Operator shall notify the Council in writing of any change: 
(a) of his address (including any address from which he operates or 

otherwise conducts his business as an Operator), within seven 
days of such change taking place; and  

(b)  to the name under which the business operates, during the period 
of the Licence, seven days before such change takes effect. 

 

 
1 “assistance dog” means—  

(a) a dog which has been trained to guide a blind person; 

(b) a dog which has been trained to assist a deaf person; 

(c) a dog which has been trained by a prescribed charity to assist a disabled person who has a disability that consists 
of epilepsy or otherwise affects the person's mobility, manual dexterity, physical co-ordination or ability to lift, carry or 
otherwise move everyday objects; 

(d) a dog of a prescribed category which has been trained to assist a disabled person who has a disability (other than 
one falling within paragraph (c)) of a prescribed kind. 

 

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Indent: Left:  2.54 cm,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2,
3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.63 cm +
Tab after:  1.27 cm + Indent at:  1.27 cm

Formatted: Font: Bold

Page 25



Convictions 
 

23.25. During the term of the licence, the Operator shall as soon as 
possible but in any event within seven days disclose to the council in 
writing details of any convictions, or police cautions imposed on him (or if 
the Operator is a company or partnership, on any of the directors or 
partners). 

 
 
 
 
 
      .  
 

Page 26



 1 

 

 

 

 

 
RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER’S LICENCE 

(the “Driver’s Licence”) 

 

The Council has the power to suspend, revoke or refuse to renew any Driver’s licence 

if any of these standard conditions are not complied with. 

 

The following standard conditions are attached to the issue of a Private Hire Driver's 

Licence (the “Driver’s Licence”) in the Ribble Valley.  

 

REQUIREMENTS FOR THE ISSUE OF A DRIVER’S LICENCE 

Age and Qualifications of Driver  

1. An applicant for a Driver’s Licence must have attained the age of 21 years and for 

the twelve months immediately prior to the application either: 

 

a. have been the holder of a licence (not being a provisional licence) granted 

under Part III of the Road Traffic Act 1988 (“RTA”) (as amended from time to 

time or under any successor legislation); or  

b. be authorised by virtue of Section 99 A(1) or Section 109(1) of the RTA (as 

amended from time to time or under any successor legislation) to drive a 

motor car in Great Britain. 

 

Health of a Driver  

 

2. A mandatory Group 2 Medical Certificate (which is a requirement of “Fitness to Drive: 

A Guide for Health Professionals” published in 2006 by The Royal Society of 

Medicine Press Limited on behalf of the Department for Transport) signed by your 

own doctor must be produced at the time of the initial application.   

 

Page 27



 2 

3. Applicants over the age of 60 years may be asked to submit themselves for 

examination by a Medical Practitioner nominated by the Council. The applicant must 

pay the costs of such an examination.  

 

4. Drivers who are 65 or over will be subject to an annual medical examination. 

 

5. In the event of the onset or worsening of a health condition likely to cause a driver to 

be a source of danger to the public, when driving either now or in the future they 

must inform the Council immediately.  

 

Examples of health conditions, which must be reported, are: 

 

• giddiness; 

• fainting; 

• black-outs; 

• Epilepsy; 

• Strokes;  

• Multiple Sclerosis; 

• Parkinson's Disease; 

• heart disease;  

• Angina; 

• Coronaries; 

• high blood pressure; 

• Arthritis;  

• disorder of vision; 

• mental illness; 

• alcoholism; 

• drug taking and  

• the loss of a limb or use of a limb.  

 

 THIS LIST DOES NOT INCLUDE ALL THE CONDITIONS THAT MUST BE 

REPORTED. THESE EXAMPLES ARE GIVEN ONLY TO INDICATE THE TYPES 

OF CONDITIONS. 

 

 Drivers, who are in doubt about whether or not their health condition is one, which 

should be reported, should consult their doctor.  

 

 

Page 28



 3 

 Test of Fit and Proper Person 

 

 All applicants must satisfy the Council that they are a fit and proper person to hold a 

Driver’s Licence.  The following issues are considered when applying that test: 

 

Disclosure and Barring Service Check (“DBS check”) 

 

6. All applicants must apply for an enhanced DBS check, the contents of which will form 

part of the process of assessing whether an applicant is a fit and proper person.  

 

Knowledge Test 

 

7. Save as set out in condition 10 below all applicants must pass the Council’s 

knowledge test before a Driver’s Licence will be issued. The knowledge test can be 

taken either as a written test or as a mobile test in the applicant’s vehicle.  Applicants 

must contact the Council to make an appointment to take the knowledge test.  An 

applicant will be allowed no more than four attempts to pass the knowledge test (see 

also condition 12 below). 

 

DVSA Taxi Driver’s Test 

 

8. All applicants must produce evidence of having passed the DVSA Taxi drivers test. 

 

BTEC - Introduction to the Role of the Professional Taxi and Private Hire Driver 

 

9. All applicants must be enrolled upon the BTEC – Introduction to the Role of the 

Professional Taxi and Private Hire Driver course upon application and must have 

completed this within one year of the licence being granted. 

 

Right to Licence 

 

10. Applicants must be able to demonstrate their right to licence pursuant to the 

Immigration Act 2016. 

 

Address on Driving Licence 

 

11. Applicants must ensure that their VOSA driving licence shows their current address.  

 

 

Page 29



 4 

THE LICENCE 

 

Duration of Driver’s Licence  

 

12. Save where the licence is subject to a suspension or revocation a Driver’s Licence 

will be valid for 12 months or three years (dependent on the period applied for) from 

the date of issue.  

 

Suspension/Revocation/Refusal to Renew 

 

13. A Driver’s Licence may be suspended, revoked and/or not renewed by the Council if 

a driver: 

 

a. a driver fails to comply with these standard conditions; 

b. a driver is convicted of an offence involving dishonesty, indecency or 

violence; or 

c. has been convicted of an offence under or has failed to comply with the 

provisions of the Town Police Clauses Act or the Local Government 

(miscellaneous provisions) Act 1976;  

 

d. has since the grant of the licence been convicted of an immigration offence or 
required to pay an immigration penalty; or 

 

e. on any other reasonable grounds. 

 

DRIVER’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

Driver's Badge/Licence  

 

14. The driver of a Private Hire Vehicle MUST wear their Private Hire Vehicle Driver’s 

Badge in a prominent position at all times whilst in the course of their duty. 

 

15. The badge will serve as evidence of the driver’s licence and they shall, if requested, 

show the badge to the hirer of the vehicle, a police officer or any authorised officer of 

the Council.  

 

16. A badge relates only to the driver it was issued to, it cannot be transferred.  

 

17. Upon expiry, revocation or suspension of a Driver’s Licence, the driver shall return 

their badge to the Council within 7 days.  

Page 30



 5 

 

18. A driver must show their Driver’s Licence to the operator/proprietor at the beginning 

of their employment as a private hire driver. 

 

Conduct of Driver 

 

19. The Driver shall:  

 

a. at all times be clean and respectable in their dress and person and behave in 

a civil and orderly manner;  

 

b. ensure that the vehicle driven by them is kept in a clean and tidy condition; 

 

c. take all reasonable steps to ensure the safety of passengers conveyed in, 

entering or alighting from the vehicle driven by them;  

 

d. not without the express consent of the hirer, eat or drink in the vehicle;  

 

e. not smoke in the vehicle or permit any passenger to smoke in the vehicle 

(which for the avoidance of doubt shall include smoking or using an electronic 

cigarette or any other vapour producing smoking device);  

 

f. not use a non-hands free mobile phone whilst driving;  

 

g. not without the express consent of the hirer, play any radio or other sound 

reproducing instrument or equipment in the vehicle, other than for the 

purpose of sending or receiving messages in connection with the operation of 

the vehicle;  

 

h. not cause or permit the noise emitted by any radio or other previously 

mentioned equipment in the vehicle which they are driving, to be a source of 

nuisance or annoyance to any person, whether inside or outside the vehicle;  

 

i. convey a reasonable quantity of luggage on behalf of the hirer and/or 

passengers;  

 

j. afford reasonable assistance with loading or unloading luggage;  

 

Page 31



 6 

k. afford reasonable assistance in removing luggage to or from the entrance of 

any building, station or place at which they may take up or set down the hirer 

and/or passenger(s);  

 

l. if they are aware that the vehicle has been hired, to be in attendance at an 

appointed time and place, or they have otherwise been instructed by the 

Operator or proprietor of the vehicle to be in attendance at an appointed time 

and place, attend at that appointed time and place unless delayed or 

prevented by sufficient cause; and 

 

m. not operate the horn of the vehicle as a means of signalling that the vehicle 

has arrived. 

 

Plying for Hire 

 

20. A driver shall not whilst driving or in charge of a Private Hire Vehicle, tout or solicit on 

a road or other public place any person to hire or to be carried for hire in a Private 

Hire Vehicle.  

 

21. The driver must not allow the vehicle to stand in such a position as to suggest it is 

plying for hire, or use a hackney carriage stand.  

 

Lost Property  

 

22. A driver of a Private Hire Vehicle shall, immediately after the termination of any hiring 

or as soon as practicable thereafter, carefully search the vehicle for any property 

which may have been accidentally left therein. 

 

23. A driver of a Private Hire Vehicle shall, on finding such lost property, take it as soon 

as possible and in any event within 48 hours if not claimed by its owner, to a Police 

Station within the district where they should report it to the officer in charge of the 

station.  

 

Passengers 

  

24. A driver shall not convey or permit to be conveyed in a Private Hire Vehicle, a greater 

number of persons than that prescribed in the Private Hire Vehicle Licence.  

 

Page 32



 7 

25. A driver shall not convey or allow there to be conveyed in the front seat of a Private 

Hire Vehicle:  

 

a. any child below the age of 10 years; or  

 

b. more than one person above that age.  

 

26. The driver of a Private Hire Vehicle shall not permit any person to be conveyed in the 

vehicle without the consent of the hirer.  

 

Unauthorised/Uninsured/Unlicensed Drivers 

  

27. No person being unauthorised, uninsured or unlicensed shall drive a private hire 

vehicle.   

 

28. The holder of a Driver’s Licence shall not permit an unauthorised, uninsured or 

unlicensed person to drive a private hire vehicle. 

 

Advertisement  

 

29. Save with the consent of the Council, a driver of a Private Hire Vehicle shall not place 

or allow to be placed any printed, written or other matter by way of advertisement on 

any part of the vehicle.  

 

Shortest Route 

  

 30. Subject to any directions given by the hirer, a driver of a Private Hire Vehicle, when 

hired, shall drive to the hirer’s required destination, by the shortest available route.  

 

Licence Plate  

 

 31. The Private Hire Vehicle Licence plate provided by the Council, which identifies the 

vehicle as a Private Hire vehicle, must remain attached to the vehicle by the method 

and in the position specified in the Private Hire Vehicle AT ALL TIMES (including 

when the vehicle is not in use) and should not be removed unless required to do so 

by an authorised officer of the Council or by the police.  

 

32. The driver of a Private Hire Vehicle shall not wilfully or negligently cause or suffer any 

licence plate to be concealed from public view at any time or to be defaced.  

Page 33



 8 

Licence Conditions  

 

33. A driver shall at all times when driving a private hire vehicle keep a copy of these 

Conditions within the vehicle and shall make them available for inspection by the 

hirer or any other passenger on request.  

 

Fare to be Demanded 

  

34.  A driver shall not demand from a hirer a fare in excess of any fare previously agreed 

for that hiring between the hirer and the Operator.  

  

35. A driver shall, if requested by the hirer of a private hire vehicle, provide them with a 

written receipt for the fare paid.  

 

Equality Act 2010 

 

Assistance Dogs 

 

36. Under the Equality Act 2010, a driver of a private hire vehicle must not fail or refuse 

to carry out a booking accepted by the operator: 

 

a. if the booking is made by or on behalf of a disabled person or a person who 

wishes to be accompanied by a disabled person, and 

 

b. the reason for the failure or refusal is that the disabled person is accompanied 

by an assistance dog1. 

 

37. An exemption to this obligation can only be given on medical grounds. 

 

 

1 assistance dog” means—  

(a) a dog which has been trained to guide a blind person; 

(b) a dog which has been trained to assist a deaf person; 

(c) a dog which has been trained by a prescribed charity to assist a disabled person who has a disability that consists of 

epilepsy or otherwise affects the person's mobility, manual dexterity, physical co-ordination or ability to lift, carry or 

otherwise move everyday objects; 

(d) a dog of a prescribed category which has been trained to assist a disabled person who has a disability (other than one 

falling within paragraph (c)) of a prescribed kind 

 

Page 34



 9 

38. Failure to comply with this obligation will lead on summary conviction to a fine not 

exceeding level 3 on the standard scale, currently £1,000. 

 

39. A driver shall not convey in a private hire vehicle any animal belonging to or in the 

custody of himself or the proprietor of the vehicle. 

 

40. A driver shall ensure that any animal carried in the private hire vehicle at the request 

of the hirer/passenger is properly secured before the journey commences. 

 

Wheelchair Accessible Vehicles 

 

41. Section 165 of the Equality Act 2010 imposes duties upon drivers of designated 

private hire vehicles where: 

 

a. a disabled person who is in a wheelchair, or  

 

b. another person who wishes to be accompanied by a disabled person who is 

in a wheelchair, have indicated to the driver that they wish to travel in the 

vehicle. 

 

42. The duties are: 

 

a. to carry the passenger while in the wheelchair; 

 

b. not to make any additional charge for doing so; 

 

c. if the passenger chooses to sit in a passenger seat, to carry the wheelchair; 

 

d. to take such steps as are necessary to ensure that the passenger is carried in 

safety and reasonable comfort; 

 

e. to give the passenger such mobility assistance as is reasonably required. 

 

43. Failure to comply with these obligations will lead on summary conviction to a fine not 

exceeding level 3 on the standard scale, currently £1,000. 

 

44. An exemption to this obligation can only be given on medical grounds. 

 

 

Page 35



 10 

 

Disabled Passengers – Duties of drivers 

 

 

45. Section 164A of the Equality Acy 2010, imposes duties upon drivers of private hire 

vehicles which have been hired by or for a disabled person, or by another person 

who wishes to be accompanied by a disabled person.  The duties are to: 

a) To carry the passenger 

b) If the passenger is in or has with them a wheelchair, to carry the wheelchair 

c) If the passenger has with them any mobility aids, to carry the mobility aids 

d) To take such steps as are reasonable to ensure that the passenger is carried in 

safety and reasonable comfort 

e) To give the passenger such mobility assistance  as is reasonably required 

f) Not to make or propose to make any additional charge for complying with a duty  

mentioned in paragraphs (a) to (e). 

It is an offence for a driver to fail to comply with this duty and person found guilty would 

be liable on summary conviction to a fine not exceeding level 3 on the standard scale 

(£1,000). 

 

Disabled Passenger – assistance to identify and find vehicle 

 

46. Section 165A  of the Equality Act 2010 imposes duties on the driver of a private hire 

vehicle or pre-booked taxi where it has been booked by a disabled person or by 

another person who wishes to be accompanied by a disabled person.  The driver’s 

duties are: 

 

a) To take such steps as are reasonable to assist the passenger to identify and 

find the vehicle which has been hired 

b) Not to make, or to propose to make, any additional charge for complying with 

the duty mentioned in paragraph (a). 

 

It is an offence for a driver to fail to comply with this duty and person found guilty would be 

liable on summary conviction to a fine not exceeding level 3 on the standard scale (£1,000). 

 

Accident to Vehicle  

 

475. If a driver of a private hire vehicle is involved in an accident or incident the driver 

MUST report this to the Council as soon as reasonably practicable, but in any case, 

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Normal, Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style:
a, b, c, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.63
cm + Indent at:  1.27 cm

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, No underline

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm, Hanging:  1.27 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.27 cm, Hanging:  1.27 cm

Formatted: Font: Bold

Page 36



 11 

within 72 hours of the accident or incident. Compliance with this condition does not 

exempt the driver from his statutory liability to report all accidents to the police.  

 

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION 

 

Convictions 

 

486. Any person who holds a Driver’s Licence MUST disclose to the Council, within seven 

days, in writing full details of any conviction and/or police caution received or 

imposed on them.  

 

Change of Address  

 

 497. Any person holding a Driver’s Licence MUST notify the Council in writing of a change 

to their address within seven days.  

 

Change of Employment  

 

5048. Any person holding a Driver’s Licence MUST notify the Council within seven days of 

the commencement or termination of employment of the name and address of the 

Operator or proprietor and the date when the employment either started or ended.  

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

 

 

 

 

RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVER’S LICENCE 

(the “Driver’s Licence”) 

 

The Council has the power to suspend, revoke or refuse to renew any Driver’s 

Licence if any of these standard conditions are not complied with. 

 

The following standard conditions are attached to the issue of a Hackney Carriage 

Driver's Licence (the “Driver’s Licence”) in the Ribble Valley.  

 

REQUIREMENTS FOR THE ISSUE OF A DRIVER’S LICENCE 

 

Age and Qualifications of Driver  

 

1. An applicant for a Driver’s Licence must have attained the age of 21 years and for 

the twelve months immediately prior to the application either:  

 

a. have been the holder of a licence (not being a provisional licence) granted 

under Part III of the Road Traffic Act 1988 (“RTA”) (as amended from time to 

time or under any successor legislation); or 

 

b. be authorised by virtue of Section 99 A(1) or Section 109(1) of the RTA (as 

amended from time to time or under any successor legislation) to drive a 

motor car in Great Britain. 

 

Health of a Driver  

 

2. A mandatory Group 2 Medical Certificate (which is a requirement of “Fitness to Drive: 

A Guide for Health Professionals” published in 2006 by The Royal Society of 

Medicine Press Limited on behalf of the Department for Transport) signed by your 

own doctor must be produced at the time of the initial application.   

 

Page 39



 2 

3. Applicants over the age of 60 years may be asked to submit themselves for 

examination by a Medical Practitioner nominated by the Council. The applicant must 

pay the costs of such an examination.  

 

4. Drivers who are 65 or over will be subject to an annual medical examination.  

 

5. In the event of the onset or worsening of a health condition likely to cause a driver to 

be a source of danger to the public, when driving either now or in the future they 

must inform the Council immediately. 

  

 Examples of health conditions, which must be reported, are: 

 

• giddiness; 

• fainting; 

• black-outs; 

• Epilepsy; 

• Strokes;  

• Multiple Sclerosis; 

• Parkinson's Disease; 

• heart disease;  

• Angina; 

• Coronaries; 

• high blood pressure; 

• Arthritis;  

• disorder of vision; 

• mental illness; 

• alcoholism; 

• drug taking and  

• the loss of a limb or use of a limb.  

 

 THIS LIST DOES NOT INCLUDE ALL THE CONDITIONS THAT MUST BE 

REPORTED. THESE EXAMPLES ARE GIVEN ONLY TO INDICATE THE TYPES 

OF CONDITIONS. 

 

 Drivers, who are in doubt about whether or not their health condition is one, which 

should be reported, should consult their doctor.  

 

 

Page 40



 3 

 Test of Fit and Proper Person 

 

 All applicants must satisfy the Council that they are a fit and proper person to hold a 

Driver’s Licence.  The following issues are considered when applying that test: 

 

Disclosure and Barring Service check (“DBS check”) 

 

6. All applicants must apply for an enhanced DBS check, the contents of which will form 

part of the process of assessing whether an applicant is a fit and proper person.  

 

Knowledge Test 

 

7. All applicants must pass the Council’s knowledge test before a Driver’s Licence will 

be issued. The knowledge test can be taken either as a written test or as a mobile 

test in the applicant’s vehicle.  Applicants must contact the Council to make an 

appointment to take the knowledge test.  An applicant will be allowed no more than 

four attempts to pass the knowledge test. 

 

DVSA Taxi Driver’s Test 

 

8. All applicants must produce evidence of having passed the DVSA Taxi drivers test. 

 

BTEC - Introduction to the Role of the Professional Taxi and Private Hire Driver 

 

9. All applicants must be enrolled upon the BTEC – Introduction to the Role of the 

Professional Taxi and Private Hire Driver course upon application and must have 

completed this within one year of the licence granted. 

 

Right to Licence 

 

10.  Applicants must be able to demonstrate their right to licence pursuant to the 

Immigration Act 2016. 

 

Address on Driving Licence 

 

11. Applicants must ensure that their VOSA driving licence shows their current address.  

 

 

 

Page 41



 4 

THE LICENCE 

 

Duration of Driver’s Licence  

 

12. Save where a licence is subject to suspension or revocation a Driver’s Licence will be 

valid for 12 months or 3 years (dependent on the period applied for) from the date of 

issue.  

 

Suspension/Revocation/Refusal to Renew 

 

13. A Driver’s Licence may be suspended, revoked and/or not renewed by the Council if 

a driver: 

 

a. fails to comply with these standard conditions; 

 

b. is convicted of an offence involving dishonesty, indecency or violence;  

 

c. has been convicted of an offence under or has failed to comply with the 

provisions of the Town Police Clauses Act or the Local Government 

(miscellaneous provisions) Act 1976;  

 

d. has since the grant of the licence been convicted of an immigration offence or 
required to pay an immigration penalty; or 

 
e. on any other reasonable grounds. 

 

DRIVER’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

Driver's Badge/Licence  

 

14. The driver of a Hackney Carriage MUST wear their Hackney Carriage Driver’s Badge 

in such a position and manner as to be visible at all times whilst in the course of their 

duty. 

 

15. The badge will serve as evidence of the driver’s licence and they shall, if requested, 

show the badge to the hirer of the vehicle, a police officer or any authorised officer of 

the Council.  

 

16. A badge relates only to the driver it was issued to, it cannot be transferred.  

 

Page 42



 5 

17. Upon expiry, revocation or suspension of a Driver’s Licence, the driver shall return 

their badge to the Council within 7 days.  

 

18. Section 48 of the Town and Police Clauses Act 1847 requires Hackney Carriage 

Proprietors to obtain and retain custody of the Hackney Carriage Licences of the 

drivers they employ.   

 

19. If carrying out private hire work a driver must show their Driver’s Licence to the 

operator/proprietor at the beginning of their employment as a private hire driver. 

 

20. A Hackney Carriage driver must only carry out private hire work through a private 

hire operator licensed by Ribble Valley Borough Council. 

 

Conduct of Driver 

 

21. The Driver shall:  

a. at all times be clean and respectable in their dress and person and behave in 

a civil and orderly manner;  

 

b. ensure that the vehicle driven by them is kept in a clean and tidy condition;  

 

c. take all reasonable steps to ensure the safety of passengers conveyed in, 

entering or alighting from the vehicle driven by them;  

 

d. not without the express consent of the hirer, eat or drink in the vehicle;  

 

e. not smoke in the vehicle or permit any passenger to smoke in the vehicle 

(which for the avoidance of doubt shall include smoking or using an electronic 

cigarette or any other vapour producing smoking device);  

 

f. not use any mobile phone (including a hands free mobile phone) whilst 

driving;  

 

g. not without the express consent of the hirer, play any radio or other sound 

reproducing instrument or equipment in the vehicle, other than for the 

purpose of sending or receiving messages in connection with the operation of 

the vehicle;  

 

Page 43



 6 

h. not cause or permit the noise emitted by any radio or other previously 

mentioned equipment in the vehicle which they are driving, to be a source of 

nuisance or annoyance to any person, whether inside or outside the vehicle;  

 

i. convey a reasonable quantity of luggage on behalf of the hirer and/or 

passengers;  

 

j. afford reasonable assistance with loading or unloading luggage;  

 

k. afford reasonable assistance in removing luggage to or from the entrance of 

any building, station or place at which they may take up or set down the hirer 

and/or passenger(s); 

 

l. if they are aware that the vehicle has been hired, to be in attendance at an 

appointed time and place, or they have otherwise been instructed by the 

Operator or proprietor of the vehicle to be in attendance at an appointed time 

and place, attend at that appointed time and place unless delayed or 

prevented by sufficient cause; 

 

m. If carrying out private hire work not operate the horn of the vehicle as a 

means of signalling that the vehicle has arrived; and  

 

n. Provide a written receipt for the fare paid if requested by the hirer. 

 

Lost Property  

 

22. A driver of a Hackney Carriage shall, immediately after the termination of any hiring 

or as soon as practicable thereafter, carefully search the vehicle for any property 

which may have been accidentally left therein.  

 

23. A driver of a Hackney Carriage shall, on finding such lost property, take it as soon as 

possible and in any event within 48 hours if not claimed by its owner, to a Police 

Station within the district where they should report it to the officer in charge of the 

station.  

 

 

 

 

Page 44



 7 

Passengers  

 

 24. Section 51 and 52 of the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 and this Council’s Byelaws 

provide that the permitted maximum number of passengers is marked on plates both 

inside and outside a Hackney Carriage.  A driver must not carry more passengers 

than the stated maximum number.  

 

25. A driver shall not convey or allow there to be conveyed in the front seat of a Hackney 

Carriage:  

 

a. any child below the age of 10 years; or  

 

b. more than one person above that age. 

 

26. The driver of a Hackney Carriage shall not permit any person to be conveyed in the 

vehicle without the consent of the hirer.  

 

Unauthorised/Uninsured/Unlicensed Drivers  

 

27. No person being unauthorised, uninsured or unlicensed shall drive a Hackney 

Carriage.   

 

28. The holder of a Driver’s Licence shall not permit an unauthorised, uninsured or 

unlicensed person to drive a Hackney Carriage. 

 

Advertisement 

 

29. Save with the consent of the Council, a driver of a Hackney Carriage shall not place 

or allow to be placed any printed, written or other matter by way of advertisement on 

any part of the vehicle.  

 

Shortest Route  

 

30.  Subject to any directions given by the hirer, a driver of a Hackney Carriage, when 

hired, shall drive to the hirer’s required destination, by the shortest available route.  

 

 

 

Page 45



 8 

Licence Plate 

  

 31. The Hackney Carriage Licence plate provided by the Council, which identifies the 

vehicle as a Hackney Carriage, must remain attached to the vehicle using the 

Council’s approved bracket, by the method and in the position specified by the 

Council, AT ALL TIMES (including when the vehicle is not in use) and should not be 

removed unless required to do so by an authorised officer of the Council or by the 

police.  

 

32. The driver of a Hackney Carriage shall not wilfully or negligently cause or suffer any 

licence plate to be concealed from public view at any time or to be defaced.  

 

Licence Conditions/Bye Laws 

 

33.  A driver shall at all times when driving a Hackney Carriage keep a copy of these 

Conditions and the Hackney Carriage Bye Laws within the vehicle and shall make 

them available for inspection by the hirer or any other passenger on request.  

 

Fares 

 

34. A driver shall ensure that a statement of fares, in the form issued by the Council is 

exhibited at all times inside the Hackney Carriage and is fitted and maintained in 

such a position so as to be clearly visible at all times to the hirer. 

 

Use of Taximeter 

 

35. A driver of a Hackney Carriage shall: 

 

a. ensure that the taximeter is started as soon as the hirer commences their 

journey; 

 

b. ensure that the dial/display of the taximeter is kept properly illuminated 

throughout any part of the hiring which is during the hours of darkness  and/or 

at any other time at the request of the hirer. 

 

c. ensure that the fare recorded on the taximeter is not cancelled or concealed 

until the hirer has had reasonable opportunity of examining it and has paid the 

fare (unless credit is to be given). 

Page 46



 9 

 

d. not tamper with or permit any person to tamper with, the taximeter, its fittings 

or seals attached to it and/or with any other equipment attached to or forming 

part of the vehicle. 

 

Equality Act 2010 

 

Assistance Dogs 

 

36. The Equality Act 2010 imposes duties on a driver of a Hackney Carriage which has 

been hired by: 

 

a. a disabled person or a person who is accompanied by an assistance dog; or 

 

b. by another person who wished to be accompanied by a disabled person with 

an assistance dog. 

 

37. The driver must: 

 

a. carry the disabled person's dog and allow it to remain with that person; and  

b. not make any additional charge for doing so. 

 

38. An exemption to this obligation can only be given on medical grounds. 

 

39. Failure to comply with this obligation will lead on summary conviction to a fine not 

exceeding level 3 on the standard scale, currently £1,000. 

 

40. A driver shall not convey in a Hackney Carriage any animal belonging to or in the 

custody of himself or the proprietor of the vehicle.  

 

41. A driver shall ensure that any animal carried in the Hackney Carriage at the request 

of the hirer/passenger is properly secured before the journey commences. 

 

Wheelchair Accessible Vehicles 

 

42. Section 165 of the Equality Act 2010 imposes duties upon drivers of designated 

hackney carriage which has been hired: 

 

Page 47



 10 

a. by or for a disabled person who is in a wheelchair, or  

 

b. by another person who wishes to be accompanied by a disabled person who 

is in a wheelchair. 

 

43. The duties are: 

 

a. to carry the passenger while in the wheelchair; 

 

b. not to make any additional charge for doing so; 

 

c. if the passenger chooses to sit in a passenger seat, to carry the wheelchair; 

 

d. to take such steps as are necessary to ensure that the passenger is carried in 

safety and reasonable comfort; 

 

e. to give the passenger such mobility assistance as is reasonably required. 

 

44. Failure to comply with these obligations will lead on summary conviction to a fine not 

exceeding level 3 on the standard scale, currently £1,000. 

 

45. An exemption to this obligation can only be given on medical grounds. 

 

Disabled Passengers – Duties of drivers 

 

46. Section 164A of the Equality Acy 2010, imposes duties upon drivers of private hire 

vehicles which have been hired by or for a disabled person, or by another person 

who wishes to be accompanied by a disabled person.  The duties are to: 

a) To carry the passenger 

b) If the passenger is in or has with them a wheelchair, to carry the wheelchair 

c) If the passenger has with them any mobility aids, to carry the mobility aids 

d) To take such steps as are reasonable to ensure that the passenger is carried in 

safety and reasonable comfort 

e) To give the passenger such mobility assistance  as is reasonably required 

f) Not to make or propose to make any additional charge for complying with a duty  

mentioned in paragraphs (a) to (e). 

Formatted: Underline

Page 48



 11 

47. It is an offence for a driver to fail to comply with this duty and person found guilty 

would be liable on summary conviction to a fine not exceeding level 3 on the 

standard scale (£1,000). 

 

Disabled Passenger – assistance to identify and find vehicle 

 

48. Section 165A  of the Equality Act 2010 imposes duties on the driver of a private hire 

vehicle or pre-booked taxi where it has been booked by a disabled person or by 

another person who wishes to be accompanied by a disabled person.  The driver’s 

duties are: 

 

a) To take such steps as are reasonable to assist the passenger to identify and find the 

vehicle which has been hired 

b) Not to make, or to propose to make, any additional charge for complying with the 

duty mentioned in paragraph (a). 

 

49. It is an offence for a driver to fail to comply with this duty and person found guilty 

would be liable on summary conviction to a fine not exceeding level 3 on the 

standard scale (£1,000). 

 

Accident to Vehicle 

 

5046. If a driver of a Hackney Carriage is involved in an accident or incident the driver 

MUST report this to the Council as soon as reasonably practicable, but in any case 

within 72 hours of the accident or incident. Compliance with this condition does not 

exempt the driver from his statutory liability to report all accidents to the police.  

 

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION 

 

Convictions  

 

5147. Any person who holds a Driver’s Licence MUST disclose to the Council, within seven 

days, in writing full details of any conviction and/or police caution received or 

imposed on them.  

 

 

 

 

Formatted: Underline

Page 49



 12 

Change of Address 

  

 5248. Any person holding a Driver’s Licence MUST notify the Council in writing of a change 

to their address within seven days.  

 

Change of Employment  

 

5349. Any person holding a Driver’s Licence MUST notify the Council within seven days of 

the commencement or termination of employment of the name and address of the 

Operator or proprietor and the date when the employment either started or ended.  

Page 50



 1 

 
INFRINGEMENT POINTS SCHEME (Private Hire) 

 

RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL’S 
LICENSING DEPARTMENT 

 

 

The Infringement Points Scheme will operate as follows:-follows: - 

 
1.  The Council's Enforcement Policy will be fully considered when determining the manner in 

which any offence or breach of licence conditions is dealt with. Where it is decided that the 
use of the infringement points system is appropriate, the points will be recommended 
dependent upon the type of offence or breach of licence conditions by the Electoral and 
Licensing Officer or Taxi Enforcement  OfficerEnforcement Officer based on the table below. 
Prior to the issue of infringement points to a licensee, the contravention(s) will be reviewed 
by the Head of Legal and Democratic Services so as to ensure that the appropriate action is 
being taken and then, if approved, the points will be issued by the Electoral and Licensing 
Officer. 

 
2.  A maximum of twelve infringement points will be issued on any one occasion. This means 

that if on any occasion when it is proposed to impose infringement points, the licence holder 
has committed more than one offence or breach of licence conditions, no more than 12 
points will be imposed. 

 
3.  Points issued to either a proprietorthe proprietor or driver will be confirmed in writing within 

10 working days from the discovery of the contravention. 
 
4. When issued, the infringement points will remain "live" for a period of two years from the 

date they are imposed so that only points accumulated in a rolling 24 monthsmonth period 
will be taken into account. If a driver or proprietor accumulates twelve or more points or an 
operator accumulates 20 or more points within a period of two years from the date they are 
imposed, he/she will be brought before a Sub Committee of the Council’s Licensing 
Committee for appropriate action to be taken.  

 
5.  Where a driver is brought before the Committee, the options available to the Committee will 

be to suspend or revoke the driver's licence, where Members are satisfied that the driver 
had failed to comply with the provisions of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) 

Page 51



 2 

Act 1976 or the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 or have a reasonable cause for believing so. 
If the members of the Committee do not feel that the matter warrants revocation or 
suspension of the licence, they may extend the period for which the points are to remain 
"live" or issue a warning to the driver. 

 
6.  Periods of Suspension of a Licence will be dependent on the nature of the breaches of the 

legislation and the compliance history of the individual. Suspension periods will normally 
vary between 7 to 31 days. More than one accumulation of infringement points in excess of 
a personal threshold in any three year period will result in the Committee reviewing whether 
the individual is suitable to continue holding licences with the Authority 

 
7.  Once the matter has been dealt with, the points will be removed if a suspension or 

revocation is imposed. However, if the period is extended or a warning given, the points will 
remain "live" for the normal two-year period. 

 
8.  A driver will retain the right to be represented at the hearing before the Licensing Committee 

either legally or otherwise and to put forward such evidence as he/she deems necessary. 
 
9.  Even though infringement points have been issued, if it is found that the driver has been 

issued with infringement points or has been formally cautioned for similar offences the 
Council retains the right to cancel the infringement points and deal with the matter in 
accordance with the Enforcement Policy. 

 
10.  Any person aggrieved by the issue of Infringement points may appeal, in writing, within 14 

days of the issue of the Infringement points Notice, to the Council's Licensing Sub 
Committee, c/o The Electoral and Licensing Officer. 

 
12.  The system will operate without prejudice to the Council’s ability to take other action that it is 

entitled to take under legislation, by-laws and regulations. 
 
 

 

 

PRIVATE HIRE OPERATORS 

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 

Section Offence Points 

46(1)(e) 
Operating a PH vehicle when the driver is not licensed as a 
PH driver. 

12 

46(1)(e) 
Operating a vehicle as a PH vehicle when the vehicle is not 
licensed as a PH vehicle. 

12 

56(2) 
Failing to keep proper records of all bookings or failing to 
produce them (also breach of operator’s standard conditions, 
see below) 

6 

Page 52



 3 

56(3) 
Failure to keep records of PH vehicles or failing to produce 
them (also breach of conditions, see below) 

6 

56(4) 
Failing to produce PH Operator's licence on request (also 
breach of conditions, see below) 

4 

73(1)(c) 
Failure to give information or assistance to an authorised 
officer or constable. 

5 

Equality Act 2010 

167A 
Failing or refusing to accept a booking by or for a disabled 
person. 

 

Breach of Private Hire Operator's Licence Standard Conditions 

Paragraph  Offence Points 

4(a) 
Failure to ensure valid planning consent is in force (when 
planning legislation and/or practice requires it) on all the 
premises from which the operation is conducted 

4 

4(b) 
Failure to obtain appropriate public  liability insurance for the 
premises or to produce the same. 

4 

4(C) 
Failure to keep a copy of the conditions at the premises or to 
make the same available for inspection by passengers. 

4 

4(d) 
Failure to permit any authorised officer of the Council to enter 
the premises for the purposes of inspecting both the premises 
and/or any 

4 

4(e) 
Permitting a person who is drunk, or who is behaving in a 
disorderly manner, to enter upon the operator’s premises 

4 

4(f) Permitting a person to smoke within the operator’s premises 4 

5 
Failure to ensure that every driver has a valid UK driver’s 
licence and/or private hire licence and badge. 

4 

7 
Servicing, maintaining or repairing any private hire vehicle on 
a public street 

4 

8/13 

Failure to properly keep, produce or make available for 
inspection records of private hire bookings, vehicles, drivers or 
other documents required to be kept or produced (see LGMP 
s.56(2) & (3) above). 

6 

Page 53



 4 

14 
Failure to ensure that an appropriate certificate of motor 
insurance covers every vehicle operated by him under the 
licence. 

6 

15 
Failure to ensure that a person making a booking has been 
informed of the basis of the charge before inviting or accepting 
a booking for a licensed private hire vehicle. 

4 

16 
Failure to ensure that a statement of fares is fitted and 
maintained in each licensed private hire vehicle (when 
required to do so) 

4 

18 
Failure to provide a prompt, efficient and reliable service to 
members of the public at all reasonable times. 

3 

19-21 

Refusal or failure to accept a booking for a private hire vehicle 
if the booking is requested by or on behalf of a disabled 
person or a person who wishes to be accompanied by a 
disabled person, where the reason for the refusal is that the 
disabled person will be accompanied by an assistance dog (as 
defined in the Equality Act 2010) 

6 

22 
Failure to notify the Council of any changes, including change 
of address from where the business operates within 7 days. 

3 

23 
Failure to disclose in writing within 7 days details of any 
conviction or police caution imposed on him to the licensing 
section. 

12 

 

Page 54



 5 

 

VEHICLES  

Private Hire Vehicle Standard Conditions 

Paragraph Offence Points 

4 
Allowing a vehicle to be used for hire by a person who does 
not hold a current private hire or hackney driver’s licence 

8 

5 
Permitting the vehicle to be used for any illegal or immoral 
purposes. 

6 

8(a) No insurance or inappropriate insurance for the vehicle. 12 

8(b) 
Failure to ensure that a copy of the current motor insurance is 
kept in the vehicle for inspection. 

3 

8(c) 
Failure to produce the Vehicle Licence and policy or motor 
insurance for inspection within 7 days of a request from an 
authorised officer of the Council or a police officer 

3 

9 (a)-(r) 
Operating a vehicle which does not comply with the Council’s 
Vehicle Specification  

5  

10 
Alterations made to a vehicle without the consent of the 
Council. 

2 

13 
Failure to submit vehicle for inspection at the place authorised 
and on the dates notified by the Council 

3 

17(a) Failure to carry a fire extinguisher authorised by the Council 3 

17(b) 
Failure to carry an appropriate first aid kit, dressings and 
appliances. 

3 

18 
Failure to ensure that the Safety Equipment is readily 
available to the driver, hirer/passengers and third parties or 
that it is available for immediate use. 

3 

19 
Radio equipment not fitted in accordance with Council 
requirements. 

2 

Page 55



 6 

20(a)-(f) 
Failure to comply with the Council’s requirements as to 
signage. 

5 

24 
Failure to display a current vehicle excise licence (car tax disc) 
in the correct place on the vehicle windscreen 

3 

25 
Failure to report an accident/incident involving the vehicle to 
the Council within 72 hours of its occurrence. 

3 

28 
Failing to notify change or transfer of ownership of the vehicle 
within 7 days of its occurrence. 

3 

 

 

DRIVERS  

Breach of Private Hire Driver’s Standard Conditions 

Section Offence Points 

2-5 
Failure to provide medical certificate or not notifying a medical 
condition 

3 

14 
Failure to wear a Private hire vehicle driver’s badge in a 
prominent position at all times whilst in the course of their 
duty. 

3 

15 
Failure to show badge on request to authorised officer of the 
council or police officers. 

2 

17 
Failure to surrender a driver's licence, badge or plate to the 
Council on expiry, suspension or revocation. 

3 

18 
Failure to show driver's licence to the proprietor at the 
beginning of an employment. 

2 

19(a) 
Failure to be clean and respectable in their dress and person 
and behave in a civil and orderly manner 

3 

19(b) 
Failure to ensure that the vehicle driven by them is kept in a 
clean and tidy condition 

2 

19(c) 
Failure to take all reasonable steps to ensure the safety of the 
passengers conveyed in, entering or alighting from the 
vehicle. 

4 

19(d) 
Drinking or eating in the vehicle without permission of 
passenger. 

2 

Page 56



 7 

19(e) 
Smoking in the vehicle or allowing any passenger to smoke in 
the vehicle. 

4 

19(f) Using a non-hands free mobile phone whilst driving 3 

19(g) 

Playing a radio or other sound reproducing instrument or 
equipment in the vehicle, other than for the purpose of 
sending or receiving messages in connection with the 
operation of the vehicle. 

3 

19(h) 

Causing or permitting the noise emitted by any radio or other 
sound reproducing equipment to be a source of nuisance or 
annoyance to any person, whether inside or outside of the 
vehicle. 

2 

19(j) & (k) 
Failure to convey a reasonable quantity of or give assistance 
with the hirer or passenger’s luggage. 

3 

19(l) 
Failure to attend on time for pre-arranged booking without 
sufficient cause. 

2 

19(m) 
Operating the horn as a means of signalling that the vehicle 
has arrived.  

3 

20 Soliciting to hire or accepting hire not pre-booked. 4 

21 
Allowing the vehicle to stand in such a position as to suggest 
that it is plying for hire, or using a hackney carriage stand. 

2 

22-23 
Failure to search vehicle after journey or failure to take found 
property to a police station within the district within 48 hours of 
finding lost property. 

2 

24 
Conveying a greater number of passengers than prescribed in 
the Vehicle Licence. 

6 

25 
Conveying a child below the age of 10 or more than one 
person in the front seat of the vehicle 

6 

26 
Permitting a person to be conveyed without the consent of the 
hirer 

6 

27-28 
Driving or allowing another to drive a private hire vehicle whilst 
unauthorised, unlicensed and/or uninsured. 

12 

29 
Allowing printed, written or other advertisements to appear on 
the vehicle without the consent of the Council 

3 

30 
Failure to proceed to destination by the shortest available 
route. 

4 

Page 57



 8 

31 
Failure to ensure that the licence plate attached to the vehicle 
in the specified place at all times. 

4 

32 Concealing or defacing a licence plate. 4 

33 
Failure to keep a copy of the standard conditions within the 
vehicle and make them available for inspection by the hirer or 
passenger. 

4 

34 
Demanding a fare in excess or that previously agreed for that 
hiring between the hirer and the operator. 

4 

35 Failure to provide a receipt when requested. 2 

36/38 Failure to carry assistance dog without exemption certificate. 5 

39 Carrying an animal other than one with passenger. 2 

40 Carrying an animal which is not safely restrained. 3 

41-44 
Failure to comply with duties under section 165 Equality Act 
2010 with a valid exemption. 

5 

45 Failure to report an accident or incident within 72 hours. 3 

46 
Failing to disclose a convictions or police caution within 7 
days. 

12 

47 Failing to notify of change of address within 7 days. 3 

48 
Failure to notify within 7 days of starting or terminating 
employment, the name and address of the proprietor and the 
date when the employment either started or ended. 

2 

 

Page 58



 9 

PRIVATE HIRE 

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provision) Act 1976 

Section Offence Points 

46(1)(a) Using an unlicensed PH vehicle. 12 

46(1)(b) Driving a PH vehicle without a PH driver's licence. 12 

46(1)(c) Proprietor of a PH vehicle using an unlicensed driver. 8 

46(1)(d) Operating a PH vehicle without a PH operator's licence. 8 

46(1)(e) 
Operating a vehicle as a PH vehicle when the vehicle is not 

licensed as a PH vehicle. 
12 

46(1) e) 
Operating a PH vehicle when the driver is not licensed as a 

PH driver. 
8 

48(6) Failure to display a PH vehicle plate. 4 

49 Failure to notify transfer of a PH vehicle licence. 3 

50(1) Failure to present PH vehicle for an inspection, as required. 3 

50(2) 
Failure to inform the Authority where the PH vehicle is stored, 

if requested. 
3 

50(3) Failure to report an accident to the Authority. 3 

50(4) 
Failure to produce a PH vehicle licence and an insurance 

certificate. 
6 

53(3) Failure to produce a PH driver's licence. 3 

54(2) Failure to wear a PH driver's badge. 3 

57 
Making false statement or withholding information to obtain a 

PH driver or operator's licence. 
10 

58(2) 
Failure to return plate after notice given following 

expiry,revocation or suspension of a PH vehicle licence. 
6 

61(2) 
Failure to surrender a driver's licence after suspension, 

revocation or refusal to renew. 
6 

64 Permitting vehicle to wait on a Hackney stand 3 

67 Charging more than the meter fare 6 

69 Unnecessarily prolonging a journey. 6 

71 Interfering with a taximeter. 10 

Page 59



 10 

73(1)(a) Obstruction of an authorised Officer or Constable. 12 

3(1)(b) 
Failure to comply with a requirement of an authorised Officer 

or Constable. 
8 

73(l)(c) 
Failure to give information or assistance to an authorised 

Officer or Constable. 
6 

Equality Act 2010 

Section Offence Points 

164A 
Disabled Passengers – Failure to comply with duty to 

passenger 
6 

165 
Disabled Passengers in wheelchairs – Failure to  comply with 

duty of passengers 
6 

170-171 
Refusal to accept a booking to carry a guide, hearing or other 

assistance dog in a private hire vehicle. 
64 

 

Formatted Table

Page 60



 

 1 

 

 
 

INFRINGEMENT POINTS SCHEME (Hackney Carriage) 
 

RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL’S LICENSING 
DEPARTMENT 

 
The Infringement Points Scheme will operate as follows:- 

 
1.  The Council's Enforcement Policy will be fully considered when determining the manner 

in which any offence or breach of licence conditions is dealt with. Where it is decided 
that the use of the infringement points system is appropriate, the points will be 
recommended dependent upon the type of offence or breach of licence conditions by the 
Electoral and Licensing Officer or Taxi Enforcement  Officer based on the table below. 
Prior to the issue of infringement points to a licensee, the contravention(s) will be 
reviewed by the Head of Legal and Democratic Services so as to ensure that the 
appropriate action is being taken and then, if approved, the points will be issued by the 
Electoral and Licensing Officer. 

 
2.  A maximum of twelve infringement points will be issued on any one occasion. This 

means that if on any occasion when it is proposed to impose infringement points, the 
licence holder has committed more than one offence or breach of licence conditions, no 
more than 12 points will be imposed. 

 
3.  Points issued to either the proprietor or driver will be confirmed in writing within 10 

working days from the discovery of the contravention. 
 
4. When issued, the infringement points will remain "live" for a period of two years from the 

date they are imposed so that only points accumulated in a rolling 24 months period will 
be taken into account. If a driver or proprietor accumulates twelve or more points or an 
operator accumulates 20 or more points within a period of two years from the date they 
are imposed, he/she will be brought before a Sub Committee of the Council’s Licensing 
Committee for appropriate action to be taken.  

 
5.  Where a driver is brought before the Committee, the options available to the Committee 

will be to suspend or revoke the driver's licence, where Members are satisfied that the 
driver had failed to comply with the provisions of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 or the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 or have a reasonable cause 

Page 61



 

 2 

for believing so. If the members of the Committee do not feel that the matter warrants 
revocation or suspension of the licence, they may extend the period for which the points 
are to remain "live" or issue a warning to the driver. 

 
6.  Periods of Suspension of a Licence will be dependent on the nature of the breaches of 

the legislation and the compliance history of the individual. Suspension periods will 
normally vary between 7 to 31 days. More than one accumulation of infringement points 
in excess of a personal threshold in any three year period will result in the Committee 
reviewing whether the individual is suitable to continue holding licences with the 
Authority 

 
7.  Once the matter has been dealt with, the points will be removed if a suspension or 

revocation is imposed. However, if the period is extended or a warning given, the points 
will remain "live" for the normal two-year period. 

 
8.  A driver will retain the right to be represented at the hearing before the Licensing 

Committee either legally or otherwise and to put forward such evidence as he/she 
deems necessary. 

 
9.  Even though infringement points have been issued, if it is found that the driver has been 

issued with infringement points or has been formally cautioned for similar offences the 
Council retains the right to cancel the infringement points and deal with the matter in 
accordance with the Enforcement Policy. 

 
10.  Any person aggrieved by the issue of Infringement points may appeal, in writing, within 

14 days of the issue of the Infringement points Notice, to the Council's Licensing Sub 
Committee, c/o The Electoral and Licensing Officer. 

 
12.  The system will operate without prejudice to the Council’s ability to take other action that 

it is entitled to take under legislation, by-laws and regulations. 
 

 

VEHICLES 

Hackney Carriage Standard Conditions 

Paragraph Offence Points 

3 
Allowing a vehicle to be used for hire by a person who does 
not hold a current private hire or hackney driver’s licence 

8 

5 
Permitting the vehicle to be used for any illegal or immoral 
purposes. 

6 

9(a) No insurance or inappropriate insurance for the vehicle. 12 

Page 62



 

 3 

9(b) 
Failure to ensure that a copy of the current motor insurance is 
kept in the vehicle for inspection. 

3 

9(c) 
Failure to produce the Vehicle Licence and policy or motor 
insurance for inspection within 7 days of a request from an 
authorised officer of the Council or a police officer 

3 

8 
 Operating a vehicle which does not comply with the Council’s  
Vehicle Specification  

5  

11 
Alterations made to a vehicle without the consent of the 
Council. 

2 

14 
Failure to submit vehicle for inspection at the place authorised 
and on the dates notified by the Council 

3 

19(a) Failure to carry a fire extinguisher authorised by the Council 3 

19(b) 
Failure to carry an appropriate first aid kit, dressings and 
appliances. 

3 

20 
Failure to ensure that the Safety Equipment is readily available 
to the driver, hirer/passengers and third parties or that it is 
available for immediate use. 

3 

21 
Radio equipment not fitted in accordance with Council 
requirements. 

2 

25 
Failure to comply with the Council’s requirements as to 
signage. 

5 

27 
Failure to display a current vehicle excise licence (car tax disc) 
in the correct place on the vehicle windscreen 

3 

28 
Failure to report an accident/incident involving the vehicle to 
the Council within 72 hours of its occurrence. 

3 

31 
Failing to notify change or transfer of ownership of the vehicle 
within 7 days of its occurrence. 

3 

 

 

DRIVERS 

Breach of Hackney Carriage Driver’s Standard Conditions 

Paragraph Offence Points 

Page 63



 

 4 

2 & 5 
Failure to provide medical certificate or not notifying a medical 
condition 

3 

13 
Failure to wear a Hackney Carriage driver’s badge in a 
prominent position at all times whilst in the course of their duty. 

3 

14 
Failure to show badge on request to authorised officer of the 
council or police officers. 

2 

16 
Failure to surrender a driver's licence, badge or plate to the 
Council on expiry, suspension or revocation. 

3 

17 
Failure to show driver's licence to the proprietor at the 
beginning of an employment when carrying out private hire 
work. 

2 

20(a) 
Failure to be clean and respectable in their dress and person 
and behave in a civil and orderly manner 

3 

20(b) 
Failure to ensure that the vehicle driven by them is kept in a 
clean and tidy condition 

2 

20(c) 
Failure to take all reasonable steps to ensure the safety of the 
passengers conveyed in, entering or alighting from the vehicle. 

4 

20(d) 
Drinking or eating in the vehicle without permission of 
passenger. 

2 

20(e) 
Smoking in the vehicle or allowing any passenger to smoke in 
the vehicle. 

4 

20(f) Using mobile phone whilst driving 3 

20(g) 

Playing a radio or other sound reproducing instrument or 
equipment in the vehicle, other than for the purpose of sending 
or receiving messages in connection with the operation of the 
vehicle. 

3 

20(h) 

Causing or permitting the noise emitted by any radio or other 
sound reproducing equipment to be a source of nuisance or 
annoyance to any person, whether inside or outside of the 
vehicle. 

2 

20(i)(j)(k) 
Failure to convey a reasonable quantity of or give assistance 
with the hirer or passenger's luggage. 

3 

20(l) 
Failure to attend on time for pre-arranged booking without 
sufficient cause. 

2 

Page 64



 

 5 

20(m) 
Operating the horn as a means of signalling that the vehicle 
has arrived.  

3 

20(n) Failure to provide a receipt when requested. 2 

21 & 22 
Failure to search vehicle after journey or failure to take found 
property to a police station within the district within 48 hours of 
finding lost property. 

2 

23 
Conveying a greater number of passengers than prescribed in 
the Vehicle Licence. 

6 

24 
Conveying a child below the age of 10 or more than one 
person in the front seat of the vehicle 

6 

25 
Permitting a person to be conveyed without the consent of the 
hirer 

6 

26 
Driving a Hackney Carriage whilst unauthorised, unlicensed 
and/or uninsured. 

5 

28 
Allowing printed, written or other advertisements to appear on 
the vehicle without the consent of the Council 

3 

29 
Failure to proceed to destination by the shortest available 
route. 

4 

30 
Failure to ensure that the licence plate attached to the vehicle 
in the specified place at all times. 

4 

31 Concealing or defacing a licence plate. 4 

32 
Failure to keep a copy of the standard conditions within the 
vehicle and make them available for inspection by the hirer or 
passenger. 

4 

35-38 Failure to carry assistance dog without exemption certificate. 5 

39 Carrying an animal other than one with passenger. 2 

40 Carrying an animal, which is not safely restrained. 3 

41-44 
Failure to comply with duties under Section 165 Equality Act 
2010 withwithout a valid exemption. 

6 

Page 65



 

 6 

45 Failure to report an accident or incident within 72 hours. 3 

46 Failing to disclose a conviction or police caution within 7 days. 12 

47 Failing to notify of change of address within 7 days. 3 

48 
Failure to notify within 7 days of starting or terminating 
employment, the name and address of the proprietor and the 
date when the employment either started or ended. 

2 

 

Bye-laws Hackney Carriages 

Bye-law Offence Points 

2 
Failure to display or maintain the external licence plates in the 
correct position or to conceal or deface the same 

4 

3 Failure to provide communications with the driver 2 

3 Failure to meet standards in respect of vehicle furnishings 3 

3 Operating a vehicle that is not clean and tidy 3 

3 Failure to carry an efficient fire extinguisher. 3 

4-5 
Operating a vehicle with a taximeter which does not comply 
with bye-laws 

5 

4-5 
Using a taximeter not in compliance with bye-laws including 
failure to bring the taximeter into operation and failure to keep 
the dial of the taximeter illuminated. 

5 

6 Tampering with a taximeter 10 

7 
Failure to observe rank discipline as per bye-law requirements 
(Failure to proceed etc). 

2 

8 
Calling out or importuning persons to use the hackney carriage 
when standing or plying for hire. 

3 

9 Failure to behave in a civil and orderly manner. 3 

9 Failure to ensure the safety of passengers 5 

10 Failure to attend punctually for a hiring without good reason. 2 

Page 66



 

 7 

(see SC) 
Failure to proceed to destination by the shortest available 
route 

3 

11 Conveying more persons than permitted 6 

12 Failure to wear a badge 3 

13 Failure to give assistance with passenger’s luggage. 3 

(see SC) Failure to produce a copy of byelaws. 2 

15 
Failure to display a statement of fares or concealing or 
defacing the same 

2 

16 Failure to search vehicle after journey. 2 

17 
Failure to take found property to the Council Offices within 48 
hours of finding. 

2 

Town Police Clauses Act 1847 

Section Offence Points 

40 
Giving false information on application for HC proprietor’s 
licence. 

5-10 

44 Failure to notify change of address of HC proprietor. 2 

45 Plying for hire without HC Proprietor’s licence. 8-12 

47 Driving a HC without HC driver's licence. 8-12 

47 Lending or parting with HC driver's licence. 4 

47 HC Proprietor employing unlicensed driver. 8 

48 Failure by HC proprietor to hold HC driver's licence. 6 

48 Failure by HC proprietor to produce HC driver's licence. 3 

52 Failure to display HC plate. 4 

53 Refusal to take a fare without reasonable excuse 4 

54 Charging more than the agreed fare. 6 

55 Obtaining more than the legal fare. (Failure to refund) 6 

Equality Act 2010 Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted Table

Page 67



 

 8 

164A 
Disabled Passengers – Failure to comply with duty to 
passenger 

6 

165 
Disabled Passengers in wheelchairs – Failure to  comply with 
duty of passengers 

6 

170-171 
Refusal to accept a booking to carry a guide, hearing or other 
assistance dog in a private hire vehicle. 

6 

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Page 68



 

 9 

 

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
 

APPENDIX 1 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Policy for the Licensing of: 
Hackney Carriage Drivers and 

Vehicles Private Hire Operators, 
Drivers and Vehicles 

 
 
 

  

Page 71



  

 
 

Contents 
1. INTRODUCTION ....................................................................................................... 1 

1.1 Objectives ........................................................................................................ 1 

1.2 Powers and Duties ........................................................................................... 1 

1.3 Status .............................................................................................................. 2 

1.4 Licensing Profile .............................................................................................. 2 

1.5 Changes to Policies, Procedures and other matters ......................................... 2 

2. GENERAL POLICY MATTERS ................................................................................. 2 

2.1 Sharing of Information ...................................................................................... 2 

2.2 Quantity Restrictions on the issue of Hackney Carriage Licences .................... 2 

2.3 Age restrictions on drivers. ............................................................................... 2 

2.4 Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) Certificates ........................................... 2 

2.5 Overseas Criminal History Checks ................................................................... 3 

2.6 Policy Relating to the Relevance of Convictions ............................................... 4 

2.7 Photographs .................................................................................................... 5 

2.8 Driving Licences .............................................................................................. 5 

2.9 Driving Standards Test .................................................................................... 5 

2.10   Right to Licence ........................................................................................... 5 

2.11   Medical Standards ........................................................................................ 6 

2.12   Inspections ................................................................................................... 6 

2.13   Lifting of Vehicle Suspensions ...................................................................... 6 

2.14   Authorised Officers ....................................................................................... 7 

2.15   Renewals ..................................................................................................... 7 

2.16  Period of Licences ...................................................................................... 7 

2.17  Test Purchasing .......................................................................................... 7 

2.18  Vehicle Standards ...................................................................................... 8 

2.19  Age of Vehicles ........................................................................................... 9 

2.20  Category C and D vehicles ......................................................................... 9 

2.21  Seating Capacity of Vehicles ...................................................................... 9 

2.22  Signage Condit ions ................................................................................. 9 

2.23  Licence fees ............................................................................................. 10 

2.24  Change of Ownership ............................................................................... 11 

2.25  Documentation ........................................................................................... 11 

2.26  Dual Plating ............................................................................................... 11 

3. HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVERS ........................................................................... 11 

3.1 First time applications .................................................................................... 11 

3.2 Renewal Applications ..................................................................................... 12 

3.3 Byelaws ......................................................................................................... 13 

3.4 Driver licence and badge ............................................................................... 13 

3.5 Convictions .................................................................................................... 13 

Page 72



  

 
 

3.6 Change of address ......................................................................................... 13 

3.7 Conduct of driver........................................................................................ 1314 

3.8 Carrying of assistance dogs and wheelchairs ................................................. 14 

3.9 Health of driver .............................................................................................. 14 

4. HACKNEY CARRIAGE VEHICLES ......................................................................... 14 

4.1 Licensing of hackney carriages ...................................................................... 14 

4.2 General .......................................................................................................... 14 

4.3 Applications ................................................................................................... 15 

4.4 Hackney Carriage Vehicle Conditions. ........................................................... 15 

4.5 Vehicle Inspection Test .................................................................................. 15 

5. PRIVATE HIRE OPERATORS ................................................................................ 15 

5.1 General ...................................................................................................... 1615 

5.2 Applications ............................................................................................... 1615 

5.3 Private Hire Operator Conditions.................................................................... 16 

6. PRIVATE HIRE DRIVERS ....................................................................................... 16 

6.1 First time applications. ................................................................................... 16 

6.2 Renewal Applications ..................................................................................... 17 

6.3 Private Hire Driver Conditions. ....................................................................... 17 

7.  PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES ................................................................................. 1817 

7.1 Applications ............................................................................................... 1817 

7.2 Private Hire Vehicle Conditions ...................................................................... 18 

7.3 Executive Vehicle Requirements .................................................................... 18 

7.4 Stretched Limousines .................................................................................... 19 

8. STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS – HACKNEY CARRIAGE VEHICLES ................... 19 

8.1 Accidents to Vehicles ..................................................................................... 19 

8.2 Insurance ....................................................................................................... 19 

9. STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS – PRIVATE HIRE OPERATORS ...................... 2019 

9.1  Term of Licence ........................................................................................ 2019 

9.2  Drivers and Vehicles .................................................................................... 20 

10. STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS – PRIVATE HIRE DRIVERS ................................. 20 

10.1  Identification of Driver ................................................................................. 20 

11. STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS – PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES ............................... 20 

11.1  Location of Vehicle ................................................................................... 20 

11.2  Transfer of Ownership .............................................................................. 20 

11.3  Alterat ion of Vehicle ................................................................................. 20 

Appendix A .......................................................................................................... 2221 

Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence Conditions ..................................................... 2221 

Appendix B .......................................................................................................... 2322 

Private Hire Operators Licence Conditions ........................................................... 2322 

Page 73



  

 
 

Appendix C .......................................................................................................... 2423 

Private Hire Drivers Licence Conditions ............................................................... 2423 

Appendix D .......................................................................................................... 2524 

Private Hire Vehicle Licence Conditions ............................................................... 2524 

Appendix E .......................................................................................................... 2625 

Byelaws Relating to Hackney Carriages............................................................... 2625 

Appendix F .......................................................................................................... 2726 

Standard Conditions of an ‘Exemption Notice’ issued in respect of an Executive 
Private Hire Vehicle ............................................................................................. 2726 

Guidance Notes ................................................................................................... 2726 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 74



  

1 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
The policy outlines the requirements of the relevant legislation and gives guidance 
to new applicants, existing licence holders, and members of the public as to how the 
Ribble Valley Borough Council (“Council”) will administer and enforce the 
requirements of the licensing regimes.  The council may depart from its policy if the 
individual circumstances of any case warrant such a deviation.  In such cases the 
Council must give full reasons for doing so. 
 
This policy was first approved by Licensing Committee in April 2017 and has been 
reviewed in September 2018.  The Head of Legal and Democratic Services has 
delegated powers to amend it when required by legislation or where Committee have 
resolved to change the Council’s requirements or procedures. 
 

1.1 Objectives 
 
The aim of the licensing process is to regulate the hackney carriage and private hire 
trade in order to promote the objectives listed below. When considering each policy 
and procedure that makes up this document the Council has endeavoured to ensure 
that each requirement is properly justified by the risk it seeks to address, balancing 
the cost of the requirement against the benefit to the public. 
 
Hackney carriages and private hire vehicles have a specific role to play in an 
integrated transport system. They are an important part of the transport 
infrastructure of the country, and the purpose of a licensing regime is to ensure that 
the service to the public is accessible and safe, and seen to be so. Hackney carriage 
and private hire drivers are persons of trust who maintain contact with the public. 
They are able to provide services in situations where other forms of public transport 
is either not available or for those with specific mobility requirements. 
 
In setting out this policy, the Council seeks to promote the following objectives: 
 

• The protection of public safety; 

• A professional and respected hackney carriage and private hire profession; 
and 

• Increased access to efficient and effective transport for the public. 
 
This document contains the policies adopted by the Council for such licences. These 
policies will normally be applied in every case but where there are exceptional or 
unusual circumstances then these policies and conditions may be departed from. In 
particular, where appropriate circumstance require it, additional conditions to those 
detailed in this document may be applied to licences. Any such departure from this 
policy will only be as approved by the Head of Legal and Democratic Services or 
Electoral and Licensing Officer in consultation with the Chairperson of the Licensing 
Committee. 
 
In adopting these policies regard has been given to all current Government advice 
contained in circulars or suggested good practice., and the Guidance on determining 
suitability of Applicants and licensees in the hackney and private hire trade 
produced by the Institute of Licensing dated April 2018.   
 

1.2 Powers and Duties 
 
Legislation sets out how the Council must carry out its licensing functions in respect 

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Page 75



  

2 
 

of hackney carriage drivers and vehicles and private hire operators, drivers and 
vehicles. 

1.3 Status 
 
In exercising its discretion in carrying out its regulatory functions, the Council will 
have regard to this policy document and the objectives listed above. 
 

1.4 Licensing Profile 
 
The Council currently licenses approximately: 
 
5964 hackney carriage drivers 
55 hackney carriage vehicles 
350 private hire operators 
984 private hire drivers 
796 private hire vehicles 
 
(figures correct as at September 2018March 2017) 
 

1.5 Changes to Policies, Procedures and other matters 
 
Significant changes to this Policy, internal procedures and other matters will be 
reasonably consulted upon and communicated via the Council’s website, and direct 
communications with licence holders and interested parties where relevant. 
 

2. GENERAL POLICY MATTERS 
 

2.1 Sharing of Information 
 
The Council will only share with other enforcement bodies, information supplied by 
applicants, where it is lawful to do so. In particular, personal information will only be 
disclosed in accordance with the Data Protection Act 1998. This may include 
requests from other regulatory agencies where this is necessary for the detection or 
prevention of crime or required by law or in connection with legal proceedings.  
 

2.2 Quantity Restrictions on the issue of Hackney Carriage Licences 
 
This Council restricts the number of hackney carriage vehicles licensed to 53, 4 of 
which are fully wheel chair accessible and 8 have elap seats. 
 

2.3 Age restrictions on drivers. 
 
This Council does not set a maximum age for the issue of licences to hackney 
carriage or private hire drivers. Applicants will be assessed on their merits. 
 
This Council imposes a minimum age of 21 for the issue of licences to hackney 
carriage or private hire drivers.  
 

2.4 Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) Certificates 
 
As part of the application process for a driver’s licence, an applicant will be required 
to complete and submit, through the Council’s preferred provider, a Disclosure and 
Barring Service Certificate (DBS). Applicants are also required to disclose on their 

Page 76



  

3 
 

application form all convictions. 
 
An enhanced DBS certificate is required for all hackney carriage drivers and private 
hire driver’s.  A basic DBS certificate is required for all Hackney Carriage proprietors 
and private hire vehicle and operators licence holderss.  Applicants for a Private Hire 
Operator’s Licence, who hold an existing hackney carriage or private hire driver’s 
licence at the time of application will be exempt from the requirement for a DBS 
certificate provided the licenses run concurrently. 
 
Disclosure and Barring Service certificates will only be accepted if the disclosure is 
dated within one calendar month prior to the application, unless the applicant has 
signed up to the ‘Update’ service.  In these cases, the DBS certificate position 
applied for must be recorded as “other workforce taxi driver” and the applicant must 
provide the original DBS certificate and the unique ID number given in respect of the 
update service registration so that the Council can undertake the required checks to 
ensure that the information contained on the DBS certificate is up to date and that 
there have been no changes since its issue. 
 
Drivers, vehicle licence holders and operators shall be required to submit new DBS 
checks every three years.  Interim checks may be required where there is an 
indication of previous criminal activity. Alternatively, licence holders can register to 
the DBS update service which would allow the Council (with the drivers permission) 
to carry out a Status check more frequently. 
 
If you have convictions, your application may be determined by the Licensing Sub- 
Committee.  Ribble Valley Borough Council has a policy Statement of Policy and 
Guidelines on relevant Convictions which sets out how the Council will normally 
deal with convictions, cautions and other relevant matters.  You must declare any 
convictions, cautions or reprimands, including fixed penalty notices for traffic 
offences on your application form and when making the Statutory Declaration (as 
applicable to your application). 
 
You must also declare if you are currently being investigated by any authority, 
enforcement agency or the Police. 
 

2.5 Overseas Criminal History Checks 
 
Where the applicant has lived in a country other than the UK for a continuous period 
of six months or more at any time since their tenth birthday, then in addition to the 
DBS certificate, the applicant will be required to produce a Certificate of Good 
Conduct issued by each relevant non-UK country in which they have resided. The 
certificate must be an extract from the judicial record or equivalent document issued 
by a competent judicial or administrative authority for the relevant country. The 
certificate must document any convictions recorded against the individual or confirm 
their “good conduct”. The applicant should contact their relevant Consulate for this. 
Overseas criminal history checks must have been obtained within the 6 month 
period preceding the application. 
 
Asylum seekers who hold a Home Office issued application registration document 
together with a positive verification letter from the Home Office's Employer Checking 
Service stating that the named individual is permitted to work in the UK 
will be exempt from the requirement to submit a recent Certificate of Good Conduct. 
The Council will require any Certificate of Good Conduct that the applicant may have 
regardless of the age of the document. 
 

Formatted: Font color: Green

Page 77



  

4 
 

Applicants with Certificates of Good Conduct which are in a language other than 
English will be required to have them translated into English at their own expense 
by an independent translation service and the translation must be verified. 
Certifying a Translation 
 
If you need to certify a translation of a document that’s not written in English, ask 
the translation company to confirm in writing on the translation: 
 

• that it’s a ‘true and accurate translation of the original document’ 

• the date of the translation 

• the full name and contact details of the translator or a representative of the 
translation company 

 

2.6 Policy Relating to the Relevance of Convictions 
 
The Council must not grant a licence to a hackney carriage or private hire driver 
unless it is satisfied that the applicant is a fit and proper person. The Council may 
refuse an application, refuse to renew an application, suspend or revoke a hackney 
carriage or private hire driver licence if: 
 

• The applicant / driver has been convicted of an offence involving dishonesty, 
indecency or violence; 

• The applicant / driver has been convicted of an offence under or has failed to 
comply with the provisions of the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 or Part II of 
the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976;  

• That he has since the grant of the licence been convicted of an immigration 
offence or required to pay an immigration penalty; or 

• There is any other reasonable cause. 
 
For the purposes of obtaining a hackney carriage or private hire driver licence, the 
Rehabilitation of Offenders Act does not apply and all previous convictions, cautions 
and intelligence revealed by DBS or overseas criminal history checks or from any 
other reliable sources must be disclosed and will be considered when assessing the 
applicant’s suitability to be licensed regardless of the date when the matter under 
consideration occurred. 
 
Since March 2002 all convictions, irrespective of age, remain “live” for the purpose 
of hackney carriage or private hire driver licensing, these occupations being added 
to the exemptions list from that time. DBS responses or overseas criminal history 
checks will be assessed against any relevant information and also against the 
following criteria: 
 

• nature of the offence; 

• circumstances of offence; 

• periods of good behaviour; 

• overall conviction history; 

• sentence imposed by the court; 

• applicants history as an existing licensee (if relevant); and 

• any other check considered reasonable e.g. personal references. 
 
Where an applicant for a licence has a criminal conviction, then this need not 
permanently disbar them for applying for a licence. Each case will be considered on 
its merits and due regard will be paid to the Council’s Policy Statement of Policy and 
Guidelines on relevant Convictions including Statement of Policy about relevant 

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Page 78



  

5 
 

convictions, cautions, complaints and other relevant matters of the time being. 
 
 

2.7 Photographs 
 
Where a photograph needs to be submitted to the Council for the purpose of the 
licensing regime for drivers, these shall be: 
 

• in colour; 

• passport size which is to say 45 mm high and 36 mm wide; 

• in clear and sharp focus; 

• taken against a plain cream or plain light grey background; 

• not have red eye; 

• have been taken within the last 30 days; 

• free from shadows, reflection; 

• shall be taken with the subject facing forward with eyes open and clearly visible 
with a neutral expression; 

• show the full head, without any head covering, unless worn for religious beliefs 
or medical reasons; and 

• be a true likeness of the subject. 
 

2.8 Driving Licences 
 
Applicants for new hackney carriage or private hire driver’s licences shall have held 
a UK driving licence, a driving licence issued by a member state of the European 
Union or other exchangeable licence as defined in the Road Traffic Act 1988 for at 
least one year prior to the date of application. This period shall not include any 
periods when the driving licence has been suspended or revoked. The licence must 
reflect the applicant’s current name and address. 
 

2.9 Driving Standards Test 
 
As part of a new application for a hackney carriage or private hire drivers licence the 
applicant will be required to pass a driving standards test and submit evidence of 
that pass with their application.  The test must have been passed within the six-
month period preceding the application for the licence.  The Council currently 
accepts test certificates from Diamond Advanced Motorists 
(www.advancedmotoring.co.uk/taxi-test). 
 

2.10   Right to Licence 
 
On 1 December 2016, the section of the Immigration Act 2016 (“2016 Act”) relating 
to hackney carriage and private hire licence came into force.  These sections provide 
that driver and operator licences must not be issued to people who are illegally 
present in the UK, who are not permitted to work, or who are permitted to work but 
are subject to a condition that prohibits them from holding such a licence.  The 
Council must therefore carry out checks to ensure that licences are not issued to 
such people and that applicants have a “Right to Licence”. 
 
The Council must check that all applicants (both new applicants and at renewal) 
have a right to licence.  This includes all nationalities, (including UK citizens), who 
apply for or hold a taxi or private hire driver licence or a private hire operator licence. 
 
The Right to Licence check will only need to be carried out once, unless there are 

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Page 79



  

6 
 

restrictions on the length of time an individual may work in the UK. If this is the case 
a licence will not be issued for any longer than the period of time an individual is 
entitled to work in the UK and the check will be repeated each time the individual 
applies to renew or extend the  licence. 
 
Details of the documents which are accepted can be found on the Council’s 
Immigration Act information sheet at  
https://www.ribblevalley.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/10896/list_of_acceptable_
documents_for_right_to_a_licence_check.pdf  
 

2.11   Medical Standards 
 
Applicants for hackney carriage or private hire driver’s licences shall, as part of their 
application, submit the Group 2 medical form completed by their own GP. 
 
The GP will indicate on the form the period within which the medical must be 
renewed (up to a maximum of 5 years) but this must be annual once the applicant 
reaches the age of 65. 
 
In considering an applicant’s medical fitness the Council will apply Group 2 DVLA 
standards. The Council reserves the right to require the submission of a new medical 
assessment at any time, at the licensee’s expense, especially where information 
becomes available that suggests that a licensee’s medical status has changed. 
Where a specific medical condition causes concern the Council may seek to obtain 
specialist medical advice solely on that applicant or licence holder’s condition. 
 

2.12   Inspections 
 
Inspections will be carried out according to a risk-based and intelligence led system 
and may be in conjunction with the police or VOSA. Operators will have their records 
and possibly their premises inspected. 
Vehicles will be inspected. 
 
Licence holders will have their documentation inspected and must produce to the 
Council, any document which has been requested for production, even if the 
document has previously been produced. 
 
Wherever possible, vehicles and documentation will be inspected at the same time. 
 

2.13   Lifting of Vehicle Suspensions 
 
Where the licensed vehicle has been suspended under the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 section 60 for failure to produce documents 
required by the Council, the suspension will only be lifted once the required 
documents are produced and are to the satisfaction of the Council.  Where relevant, 
the Council reserves the right to conduct a vehicle inspection before lifting the 
suspension. 
 
Where the licensed vehicle has been suspended under the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 section 68 following an inspection, the 
suspension will only be lifted once any required documents have been produced, 
the defects identified in the suspension notice rectified and (if required) the vehicle 
passes a test by the Council’s appointed testing centre. 
 
 

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Page 80

https://www.ribblevalley.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/10896/list_of_acceptable_documents_for_right_to_a_licence_check.pdf
https://www.ribblevalley.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/10896/list_of_acceptable_documents_for_right_to_a_licence_check.pdf


  

7 
 

2.14   Authorised Officers 
 
The Council may authorise other Licensing Authorities to regulate hackney carriage 
and private hire drivers and vehicles in accordance with the Council’s policy, 
conditions of the licence, byelaws and relevant law. The Council will publish via its 
website the names of Councils which have been authorised. To date the Council 
has not authorised any other authorities. 
 

2.15   Renewals 
 
A renewal application will not be accepted more than one calendar month before the 
expiry of the current licence as a premature application increases the likelihood of 
the Council determining whether a person remains a “fit and proper” person based 
on information that is not up to date at the time of renewal. 
 
If the applicant fails to submit a renewal application two weeks before the expiry of 
the current licence, the Council cannot guarantee the licence will be renewed on 
time. Only fully completed applications accompanied with the original required 
supporting documents and correct fee will be accepted, incomplete applications will 
be returned. 
 
Where a licensed driver fails to apply for a new licence before their existing licence 
expires, (and in all cases where a period of one year has elapsed since the licence 
expired) the licensee may be required to apply for a new licence as if they were a 
new applicant. In such circumstances, a licence will not be granted until such time 
as all the necessary licensing requirements have been fulfilled.  
 
Legal responsibility rests with drivers, vehicle proprietors and operators to ensure 
that their licence is current. Any person who drives a hackney carriage or private 
hire vehicle without a valid and appropriate licence or permits someone to use their 
vehicle as if it were a licensed vehicle commits a criminal offence. 
 

2.16  Period of Licences 
 
All licences issued after the adoption of this policy shall last for the following periods. 
 

• a hackney carriage vehicle licence shall last for a period not exceeding 4, 6 or 
12 months dependent on the age of the vehicle; 

• a hackney carriage driver’s licence shall last for a period not exceeding three 
years; 

• a private hire vehicle operator’s licence shall last for a period not exceeding 

• five years; 

• a private hire vehicle licence shall last for a period not exceeding 4, 6 or 12 
months dependent on the age of the vehicle; and 

• a private hire driver’s licence shall last for a period not exceeding three years. 
 

2.17  Test Purchasing 
 
Where appropriate, the Council will carry out test purchasing of hackney carriage 
and private hire services in order to check that licensing requirements are being 
complied with. 
 
 

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Page 81



  

8 
 

2.18  Vehicle Standards 
 
Vehicles will not be considered suitable for licensing as hackney carriages or private 
hire vehicles unless they comply with this policy document and, in addition, the 
following:  
 
Hackney Carriages 
 

• an FX9 or equivalent (London cab type) vehicle or;  

• a saloon or estate car with at least four doors and reasonable accommodation 
for luggage and capable of seating not less than 4 nor more than 8 adult 
passengers or;  

• a minibus type vehicle capable of seating not more than 8 adult passengers; 

• and in respect to an FX9 or equivalent or a minibus: 
▪ is a right-hand drive vehicle;  
▪ has adequate lighting for the interior of the vehicle and an adequate 

heating system for the driver and passengers, with means of control by 
the driver;  

▪ carries a spare wheel and tool kit to change wheels;  
▪ is of such a design to enable any person in the carriage to communicate 

with the driver;  
▪ is fitted with a roof or covering which can be kept water-tight; vi) contains 

windows and a means of opening and closing not less than one window 
on each side;  

▪ contains seats which must be properly cushioned or covered;  
▪ has a proper carpet, mat or other suitable covering for the floor;  
▪ contains fittings and furniture kept in a clean condition, safe and well 

maintained and in every way fit for public service;  
▪ is fitted in such a way to enable luggage to be secured if the vehicle is so 

constructed to carry luggage;  
▪ contains at least two doors for the use of persons conveyed in the vehicle 

and a separate means of ingress and egress for the driver; and 
▪ (save with the approval of the Council) have glass in its windows with a 

minimum of 70% light transmission. 
▪ Licensed vehicles are not required to be fitted with closed circuit television 

(CCTV), where a licensed vehicle is equipped with CCTV, this must meet 
all legislative requirements and European Union directives and it must be 
specific for purpose i.e., to provide a safer environment for the benefit of 
the driver and passengers. 

 
Private Hire 
 

• be in a sound and road worthy condition 

• be maintained in a safe and clean condition inside and out; 

• comply fully with all relevant statutory requirements (including but not 
exclusively the Motor Vehicles (Construction and Use) Regulations as 
amended from time to time or its successor legislation; 

• be fitted with four road wheels, and an approved spare wheel;  

• have at least four doors; 

• be capable of seating not less than four nor more than eight full-sized adult 
passengers; 

• be of the right hand drive type;  

• be fitted with a roof or covering which can be kept watertight;  

• be fitted with wing mirrors; 

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Page 82



  

9 
 

• contain windows which open and close, at least one on each side of the 
vehicle; 

• contain properly upholstered and covered seats;  

• contain furniture and fittings which are clean, well maintained and in every 
way fit for public service; 

• be of such design as to enable the hirer/passenger in it to communicate with 
the driver;  

• be fitted in such a way to enable luggage to be secured if the vehicle is 
constructed to carry luggage;  

• have a proper carpet fitted to the floor; 

• have the licence plate issued by the Council fixed by a bracket to the rear of 
the vehicle, which is easily removable;  

• display an internal licence plate provided by the Council, in the front 
windscreen so as not to obscure the driver's vision.  

• (save with the approval of the Council) have glass in its windows with a 
minimum of 70% light transmission. 

 

2.19  Age of Vehicles 
 
The Council does not restrict the age of a vehicle but its age will determine the 
term of the licence as follows: 
 

• Vehicles under 3 years old – 12 months; 

• Vehicles over 3 years old but less than 7 years old – 6 months; and 

• Vehicles over 7 years old – 4 months. 
 

2.20  Category C and D vehicles 
 
Vehicles of Category C or D status can be licensed by this Council. The Council 
will, in addition to the application requirements, require a letter from the applicant’s 
insurance company to confirm that they are aware of the Category status and are 
prepared to insure the vehicle. 
 

2.21  Seating Capacity of Vehicles 
 
In determining the number of passengers that a vehicle may be licensed for, the 
following guidelines will be applied. 
 

• where separate seats for each person are provided one person shall be 
counted for each separate seat provided; 

• where the vehicle is fitted with continuous seats one person shall be counted 
for each complete length of 410 mm measured in a straight line lengthwise on 
the front of each seat, however this number shall be reduced where there are 
insufficient seatbelts provided to accommodate this number; and 

• where any continuous seat is fitted with arms in order to separate the seating 
spaces and the arms can be folded back or otherwise put out of use, the arms 
shall be ignored in measuring the seat. 

 

2.22  Signage Conditions 
 
Hackney Carriage 
 
A Hackney Carriage must: 
 

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Page 83



  

10 
 

• be equipped with a roof sign, of a standard size - width 500mm, height 120mm 
- such sign to be illuminated and bearing the word "TAXI" in black letters on 
yellow background and facing forward and on the red background facing 
backwards.  

• not save as set out above, be equipped with roof fittings, including 
advertisements except a wireless aerial which must be fitted in such a manner 
as to satisfy the Council;  

• have a sign stating 'no smoking' with minimum diameter of 70mm displayed in 
a visible position inside the vehicle. 

• not display any signs, notices, advertisements, plates, marks, numbers, 
letters, figures, symbols, emblems or devices whatsoever on, in or from the 
vehicle except as may be required by any statutory provision (including bye-
laws) or required or permitted by these conditions. This condition does not 
apply to any indication on a taximeter fitted to the vehicle or to a sign which: 

• is displayed in, on or from the vehicle whilst it is stationary;  

• contains no words or numbers other than the name and address of an operator 
of the vehicle or the name under which he carries on his business and its 
address;  

• is displayed in pursuance of a prior arrangement made for the carriage of a 
passenger or passengers named in the sign. 

 
Private Hire 
 
A private hire vehicle must: 
 

• not have any lights, plates, signs, advertisements or other fittings, save for 
those required under conditions or as approved by the Council; 

• not be equipped with any roof fitting or sign other than a wireless aerial, 
approved by the Council; 

• not display the words "Taxi", "Taxi Cab" or "Cab"; 

• display door signs upon its rear doors stating “Private Hire Vehicle”, 
“Advanced bookings only” and “Not insured unless prebooked” only and the 
lettering within those signs must be in bold black type and not less than 15mm 
in height .  These signs must be displayed on private hire vehicles AT ALL 
TIMES (including when the vehicle is not in use)”; 

• display door signs upon its front doors which shall only include the name of 
the private hire operator and its telephone number. If the words “Taxi”, “Taxi 
Cab” or “Cab” or “for hire” form part of the Operator’s name these must be 
omitted from the sign; and  

• display a  sign stating "no smoking" with a minimum diameter of 70mm inside 
the vehicle in a position which is clearly visible to the hirer/passengers.” 
 

2.23  Licence fees 
 
The legislation provides that fees charged to applicants should be sufficient to cover 
the costs of inspecting the vehicles, providing hackney carriage stands (taxi ranks) 
and administering the regulation of the hackney carriage and private hire trades. 
 

The appropriate fee must be paid when the application for a hackney carriage or 
private hire driver’s and/or vehicle licence is submitted. 
 

Current fees are advertised on the Council’s website and are detailed on the 
relevant application form guidance notes. 
In respect of hackney carriage and private hire driver and vehicle licences, no 
refunds will be given after the licence had been issued.  

Formatted: Font color: Green

Page 84



  

11 
 

 
In respect of applications for hackney carriage and private hire driver’s licences, no 
refund will be given to applicants who are refused a licence after determination by 
the Council. 

 
 

2.24  Change of Ownership 
 
The holder of a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle licence is required by law to 
notify the Council, in writing, of the name and address of a person to whom he/she 
has transferred their interest of the licensed vehicle to.  Such notification must take 
place within 14 days of the transfer of interest. 
 
The new proprietor of the vehicle must within 14 days of acquiring the vehicle, submit 
to the Council an application for a change of ownership and such application must 
be accompanied by the relevant insurance and the V5 registration document 
showing the new keeper’s name and address or the new keeper supplement thereof. 
If a new keeper supplement is produced, the full log book must be submitted to the 
Council within 6 weeks. 
 
If the change of ownership is not notified in accordance with the above, the Council 
may refuse to register the new proprietor. 
 

2.25  Documentation 
 
All documentation submitted in support of hackney carriage and private hire driver 
and vehicle licences, or private hire operators must be original documents which can 
be verified. 
 
The Council will accept emailed copies of insurances documents to the Licensing 
department’s official email address licensing@ribblevalley.gov.uk). 
 
V5 vehicle registration documents and driving licences submitted by email when 
requested to do so or which are submitted as part of notifications regarding a change 
of address will be accepted by email provided that the document is clearly legible 
once viewed on Council systems. The Council reserves the right to refuse service 
by email where further enquiries or inspection of the original document is required. 
 
V5 registration documents must be in an individual’s name, partnership, sole trader 
or limited company registered with Companies’ House. 
 

2.26  Dual Plating 
 
The Council does not allow a licensed vehicle to be licensed as a hackney carriage 
or private hire vehicle with any other licensing authority whilst the licence with this 
Council is in force. 
 

3. HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVERS 
 

3.1 First time applications 
 
Before the Council will issue a licence the applicant must: 
 

• Satisfy the Council that they are not less than 21 years of age 

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Page 85

mailto:licensing@ribblevalley.gov.uk


  

12 
 

• Satisfy the Council that they have for at least 12 months prior to the date of 
the application, held a driver’s licence (not being a provisional licence granted 
to the application under Part III of the Road Traffic Act 1972 authorising 
him/her to drive a motor car. 

• Complete the Council’s application form and sign the statutory declaration in 
the form prescribed by the Council 

• Pay the relevant fee 

• Produce either their Birth Certificate or Passport or document or document 
combination that is stipulated as being suitable for compliance with the 
Immigration Act “right to licence” test 

• Produce their DVLA Driving Licence and provide the appropriate authorisation 
to allow the Council to carry out a check with the DVLA 

• 7.            Provide                2 Passport style photographs 

• Provide a Letter of character reference 

• Complete the online Disclosure and barring service  (DBS) check and provide 
a copy of the disclosure 

• Provide a Mandatory Group 2 Medical Certificate signed by the applicant’s 
own GP or by a GP from the same practise who has access to the applicant’s 
medical records to the effect that they are fit to be a driver of a hackney 
carriage 

• Satisfactorily complete the Council’s knowledge test. 

• Provide a certificate for the DVSA taxi driver test. 

• Either provide a certificate for the Level 2 NVQ in Road Passenger Vehicle 
Driving (Taxi and Private Hire)B Tech Introduction to the role of Professional 
Taxi and Private Hire Driving   or confirm at which college this will be 
completed, and when and provide evidence of enrollmentenrolment on the 
course and that the fee has been paid. 

• Complete the Council’s Child Sexual Exploitation awareness course or 
provide a copy of the certificate is this has already been completed. 

• Provide a document or document combination that is stipulated as being 
suitable for compliance with the Immigration Act “right to licence” test. 
 

3.2 Renewal Applications 
 
Before an application to renew a licence will be granted the applicant must: 
 

• Complete the Council’s application form and sign the statutory declaration in 
the form prescribed by the Council. 

• Pay the relevant fee. 

• Provide 1 Passport style photograph. 

• Produce their DVLA Driving Licence and provide the appropriate authorisation 
to allow the Council to carry out a check with the DVLA 

• Produce their certificate for the Level 2 NVQ in Road Passenger Vehicle 
Driving (Taxi and Private Hire)B Tech Introduction to the role of Professional 
Taxi and Private Hire Driving   (this only applies where they first applied for a 
licence on or after 1 April 2016). 

• Provide a Mandatory Group 2 Medical Certificate signed by the applicant’s 
own GP or by a GP from the same practise who has access to the applicant’s 
medical records to the effect that they are fit to be a driver of a hackney 
carriage (where required). 

• Complete the online Disclosure and barring service (DBS) check and provide 
a copy of the disclosure (where required). 

• When renewing for the first time since the implementation of the Immigration 
Act 2016 provide the necessary documentation to evidence their right to 

Formatted: Font color: Green

Page 86



  

13 
 

licence. 

• Complete the Council’s Child Sexual Exploitation awareness course or 
provide a copy of the certificate is this has already been completed. 

 
The Council will not accept an application for the renewal of a driver’s licence more 
than one calendar month before the date on which the current licence is to expire as 
a premature application increases the likelihood of the Council determining whether 
a person remains a “fit and proper” person based on information that is not up to 
date at the time of renewal. 
 
Legal responsibility rests with the driver to ensure that their licence is current. Any 
person who drives a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle without a valid and 
appropriate licence commits a criminal offence.  
 
Any licence holder that drives after the expiry of their licence and before a new 
licence is granted is committing a criminal offence.  
 

3.3 Byelaws 
 
Hackney carriage drivers and proprietors shall comply with the byelaws adopted by 
the Council relating to hackney carriages as detailed within the appendices of this 
policy document. Where there is a conflict between the byelaws and the conditions 
of the licence or legislation, legislation will take precedence and in all other cases, 
the conditions of the licence will take precedence. 
 

3.4 Driver licence and badge 
 
A driver shall be issued with a hackney carriage driver’s licence and identification 
badge. These documents remain the property of the Council. At the request of an 
Authorised Officer of the Council, the licence and identification badge must be 
returned to the issuing office. A driver shall upon the expiry (without immediate 
renewal), revocation or suspension of the licence forthwith return the drivers badge 
to the Council. 
 

3.5 Convictions 
 
The driver shall notify the Council within seven days of his arrest, charge, receipt of 
a summons or fixed penalty notice, conviction or Caution for any offence. If you have 
convictions, your licence may be determined by the Licensing Committee. 
 

3.6 Change of address 
 
The holder of a hackney carriage or private hire driver’s licence and/or vehicle 
licence shall notify the Council in writing of any change of his address during the 
period of the licence within 7 days of such change taking place. Within 6 weeks of 
such a change, the holder of a hackney carriage or private hire driver’s licence shall 
produce to the Council, the updated driving licence showing the new address. The 
holder of a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle licence shall within 6 weeks 
produce the V5 registration document showing the new address and the amended 
driving licence. 
 

3.7 Conduct of driver 
 
The driver shall at all times be clean and respectable in their dress and person and 

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Page 87



  

14 
 

behave in a civil and orderly manner. 
 

3.8 Access to taxis and private hire vehicles for disabled usersCarrying of 
assistance dogs and wheelchairs 
 
Sections 164A, 165, 165A, 168 and 170 of the Equality Act 2010 place duties on 
drivers to ensure that disabled people have specific rights and protections to access 
taxis and PHVs to receive assistance when using these services.A driver, unless in 
possession of an exemption certificate, must accept bookings made by or on behalf 
of a disabled person who is accompanied by an assistance dog. Furthermore, a 
driver must accept a booking by a person who will be accompanied in the hackney 
carriage vehicle by such a disabled person and a driver must not make an additional 
charge for carrying the disabled passenger’s assistance dog, wheelchair or any 
other mobility aid. 
 
 
The Council will proactively monitor and take enforcement action in respect of these  
duties and has incorporated them into its infringement scheme and Private Hire and 
Hackney Carriage Convictions Policy.  Any breach of this duty will be enforced. 
 
All new driver’s will be required to complete training on these duties prior to the grant 
of a licence.  
 

3.9 Health of driver 
 
The driver of a hackney carriage must inform the Council without delay about the 
onset or worsening of any health condition likely to cause them to be a source of 
danger to the public when driving either now or in the future. Examples are 
contained in the DVLA medical notification guidance.  Such notification must be 
made in writing to the Council’s office address or to the licensing department’s email 
(licensing@ribblevalley.gov.uk). 
 
Drivers who are in doubt about whether or not their health condition is one which 
should be reported should consult their doctor and refer to the DVLA medical rules 
and standards updated every 6 months. 
 

4. HACKNEY CARRIAGE VEHICLES 
 

4.1 Licensing of hackney carriages 
 
(Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 section 47): 
 
1)   A district council may attach to the grant of a licence of a hackney carriage 

under the Town Police Clauses Act of 1847 such conditions as the district 
council may consider reasonably necessary. 

2)   Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing subsection, a district 
council may require any hackney carriage licensed by them under the Act of 
1847 to be of such design or appearance or bear such distinguishing marks 
as shall clearly identify it as a hackney carriage. 

3)   Any person aggrieved by any conditions attached to such a licence may 
appeal to a magistrates’ court. 

 

4.2 General 
 

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Page 88

mailto:licensing@ribblevalley.gov.uk


  

15 
 

Hackney carriage vehicles shall comply with the hackney carriage conditions and 
byelaws adopted by the Council relating to hackney carriages. The vehicle shall be 
issued with identification plates and door livery which remain the property of the 
Council. A vehicle licence holder shall upon the expiry (without immediate renewal), 
revocation or suspension of the licence return the identification plates to the Council, 
subject to the relevant timescales. 
 
 

4.3 Applications 
 
The following documents shall be submitted when making an application for a new 
or renewal licence: 
 

• the correct fee; 

• an original certificate of insurance for the vehicle, valid on the day the licence 
is collected, and with not less than 30 days cover insuring it for  the purpose of 
its use as a hackney carriage vehicle; certificates of insurance emailed/faxed 
direct from the insurance company will be accepted; 

• the original Vehicle Registration Document showing the current owners name 
and address or the new keeper supplement; (document must be in person 
name, sole trader, partnership or limited company); 

• a current MOT certificate - on renewal applications, this certificate shall be no 
older than two months prior to the expiry of the vehicle licence; 

• a vehicle inspection test certificate from the Council’s approved testing centre; 
 

The Council will not accept an application for the renewal of a vehicle licence more 
than one calendar month before the date on which the current licence is to expire 
as a premature application increases the likelihood of the Council determining 
whether a the vehicle remains fit for licensing based on information that is not up to 
date at the time of renewal. 
 
Legal responsibility rests with the driver to ensure that their licence is current. Any 
person who drives a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle without a valid and 
appropriate licence commits a criminal offence.   
 
Any licence holder who drives after the expiry of their licence and before a new 
licence is granted is committing a criminal offence.  
 

4.4 Hackney Carriage Vehicle Conditions. 
 
The conditions appended at Appendix A are attached to a hackney carriage vehicle 
licence. 
 

4.5 Vehicle Inspection Test 
 
The vehicle inspection test must be carried out at the Council’s approved testing 
centre. Currently Bee Mill Garage, Preston Road, Ribchester, Preston PR3 3XL. A 
checklist for the inspection can be found on the application form.  
 
 

5. PRIVATE HIRE OPERATORS 
 

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Page 89



  

16 
 

5.1 General 
 
This Council will only licence Operator’s offices that are within the Council’s area. 
All licences are currently renewed in February, and are granted for only part of a 
year if applied for later. 
 

5.2 Applications 
 
The following documents shall be submitted when making an application for a new 
licence or renewal of a vehicle licence: 
 

• the correct fee; 

• basic enhanced DBS certificate; 

• overseas criminal history check where applicable; 

• The above two items are exempt if the applicant is an existing licensed driver 
or vehicle holder with this Council; 

• Public Liability Insurance if the premises are open to the public; and 

• Planning permission / certificate of lawfulness if applicable (contact the 

• Planning Department for advice); 
 
Any application not accompanied by the appropriate documentation, or where the 
applicant has not attended for an interview, shall be rejected as invalid. 
 

5.3 Private Hire Operator Conditions. 
 
The conditions appended at Appendix B are attached to a private hire operator 
licence. 
 

6. PRIVATE HIRE DRIVERS 
 

6.1 First time applications. 
 
Before a new driver’s licence will be granted the applicant must: 
 

• Satisfy the Council that they are not less than 21 years of age 

• Satisfy the Council that they have for at least 12 months prior to the date of 
the application, held a driver’s licence (not being a provisional licence granted 
to the application under Part III of the Road Traffic Act 1972 authorising 
him/her to drive a motor car. 

• Complete the Council’s application form and sign the statutory declaration in 
the form prescribed by the Council 

• Pay the relevant fee 

• Produce either their Birth Certificate or Passport or other documents which 
satisfy the ‘right to licence’ test 

• Produce their DVLA Driving Licence and provide the appropriate authorisation 
to allow the Council to carry out a check with the DVLA 

• Provide 2 Passport style photographs 

• Provide a Letter of character reference 

• Complete the online Disclosure and barring service  (DBS) check and provide 
a copy of the disclosure 

• Provide a Mandatory Group 2 Medical Certificate signed by the applicant’s 
own GP or by a GP from the same practise who has access to the applicant’s 
medical records to the effect that they are fit to be a driver of a hackney 

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Page 90



  

17 
 

carriage 

• Satisfactorily complete the Council’s knowledge test. 

• Provide a certificate for the DVSA taxi driver test. 

• Either provide a certificate for the Level 2 NVQ in Road Passenger Vehicle 
Driving (Taxi and Private Hire)B Tech Introduction to the role of Professional 
Taxi and Private Hire Driving   or confirm at which college this will be 
completed, and when and provide evidence of enrollmentenrolment on the 
course and that the fee has been paid. 

• Complete the Council’s Child Sexual Exploitation awareness course or 
provide a copy of the certificate is this has already been completed 

 
Any application not accompanied by the appropriate documentation shall be rejected 
as invalid. 
 

6.2 Renewal Applications 
 
Before an application to renew a licence will be granted the applicant must: 
 

• Complete the Council’s application form and sign the statutory declaration in 
the form prescribed by the Council. 

• Pay the relevant fee. 

• Provide 1 Passport style photograph. 

• Produce their DVLA Driving Licence and provide the appropriate authorisation 
to allow the Council to carry out a check with the DVLA 

• Produce their certificate for the Level 2 NVQ in Road Passenger Vehicle 
Driving (Taxi and Private Hire)B Tech Introduction to the role of Professional 
Taxi and Private Hire Driving   (this only applies where they first applied for a 
licence on or after 1 April 2016). 

• Provide a Mandatory Group 2 Medical Certificate signed by the applicant’s 
own GP or by a GP from the same practise who has access to the applicant’s 
medical records to the effect that they are fit to be a driver of a hackney 
carriage (where required). 

• Complete the online Disclosure and barring service (DBS) check and provide 
a copy of the disclosure (where required). 

 
The Council will not accept an application for the renewal of a driver’s licence more 
than one calendar month before the date on which the current licence is to expire as 
a premature application increases the likelihood of the Council determining whether 
a person remains a “fit and proper” person based on information that is not up to 
date at the time of renewal. 
 
Legal responsibility rests with the driver to ensure that their licence is current. Any 
person who drives a private hire vehicle without a valid and appropriate licence 
commits a criminal offence.   
 
Any licence holder that drives after the expiry of their licence and before a new 
licence is granted is committing a criminal offence.  
 

6.3 Private Hire Driver Conditions. 
 
The conditions appended at Appendix C are attached to a private hire driver licence. 
 

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Page 91



  

18 
 

7.  PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES 
 

7.1 Applications 
 
The following documents shall be submitted when making an application for a new 
or renewal licence: 
 

• the correct fee; 
 

• an original certificate of insurance for the vehicle, valid on the day the licence 
is collected, insuring it for  the purpose of its use as a private hire vehicle; 
certificates of insurance emailed direct from the insurance company will be 
accepted; 

• the original Vehicle Registration Document showing the current owners name 
and address or the new keeper supplement; (document must be in person 
name, sole trader, partnership or limited company); 

• an MOT certificate issued during a mechanical vehicle inspection at a Council 
nominated testing  station dated within the month preceding the application; 
and 

• if applicable, a letter from the registered keeper of the vehicle to the applicant, 
stating that they have given their permission for the vehicle to be licensed. 

• Basic DBS certificate. 
 
 
The Council will not accept an application for the renewal of a vehicle licence more 
than one calendar month before the date on which the current licence is to expire. 
 
Legal responsibility rests with the driver to ensure that their licence is current. Any 
person who drives a private hire vehicle without a valid and appropriate licence 
commits a criminal offence.   
 
 

7.2 Private Hire Vehicle Conditions 
 
The conditions appended at Appendix D are attached to a private hire vehicle 
licence. 
 

7.3 Executive Vehicle Requirements 
 
Private Hire vehicles used solely for executive hire can be exempted under Section 
75(3) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 from the 
requirement to display a licence plate and the driver from wearing a driver’s badge. 
Applications for an exemption from this requirement must be made in writing. 
 
(The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 provides a further 
exemption when a vehicle is under a contract for the hire of the vehicle for a period 
of not less than 24 hours.) 
 
The matters that will be taken into account when considering such applications will 
include the following: 
 

• Most (and in this context this means approximately 90%) or all of the work 
should be for businesses which maintain an account with the operator(s). This 
should be demonstrated by reference to records of at least three months 

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Page 92



  

19 
 

existing work; 

• The vehicle should generally be used exclusively for account work and not 
used for any other booked work; 

• The type of vehicle to which the application relates on the basis that executive 
status should relate only to luxury type vehicles; 

• The compliance record of the operator concerned including details of any 
complaints lodged against drivers employed by the operator. 

• An interview with an officer from the Council’s Licensing department. 
 
An Executive Vehicle shall be subject to the standard conditions attached to an 
exemption granted to the holder of a private hire vehicle licence. 
 
If granted, the exemption notice will be issued to the holder of the private hire vehicle 
licence and shall be granted for a period not exceeding one year and shall expire 
upon the expiry of the private hire vehicle licence. 
 
The conditions appended at Appendix F are attached to Executive Private Hire 
Vehicle licences. 
 

7.4 Stretched Limousines 
 
Stretched limousines will be considered by the Council for licensing as a private hire 
vehicle providing that: 
 

• A certificate is produced to show that the vehicle has been examined under the 
Individual Vehicle Approval inspection regime by VOSA; 

• The vehicle is not capable of carrying more than 8 passengers; 

• All other aspects of licensing a vehicle as a private hire vehicle are complied 
with. 

 

8. STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS – HACKNEY CARRIAGE VEHICLES  
 
Below are some of the statutory requirements for hackney carriage vehicles. The list 
is not exhaustive and readers are recommended to consult the relevant 
legislation for further detail: 
 

8.1 Accidents to Vehicles 
 
The proprietor of a hackney carriage shall report to the Council in writing as soon as 
reasonably practicable, and in any case within 72 hours of the occurrence thereof, 
any accident to such hackney carriage causing damage materially affecting the 
safety, performance or appearance of the hackney carriage or the comfort or 
convenience of persons carried therein. Compliance with this condition does not 
exempt the proprietor from his statutory liability to report accidents to the police. 
 

8.2 Insurance 
 
The proprietor of any hackney carriage licensed by the Council shall at the request 
of any Authorised Officer of the Council produce for inspection the vehicle licence 
for such hackney carriage and the certificate of the policy of insurance or security 
required by Section 143(2) Road Traffic Act 1988. 
 

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Page 93



  

20 
 

9. STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS – PRIVATE HIRE OPERATORS 
 
Below are some of the statutory requirements for private hire operators. The list is 
not exhaustive and readers are recommended to consult the relevant legislation for 
further detail: 
 

9.1  Term of Licence 
 
A Private Hire Operator’s Licence will normally be granted for a period of 5 years. A 
renewal application must be received and processed before the expiry of the current 
licence. Any licence holder that drives after the expiry of their licence and before a 
new licence is granted is committing a criminal offence.  
 

9.2  Drivers and Vehicles 
 
Only properly licensed drivers and vehicles are used to fulfil any booking. 
 

10. STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS – PRIVATE HIRE DRIVERS 
 
Below are some of the statutory requirements for private hire drivers. The list is not 
exhaustive and readers are recommended to consult the relevant legislation for 
further detail: 
 

10.1  Identification of Driver 
 
The driver of a private hire vehicle shall at all times whilst in the course of his duty 
wear his private hire driver’s badge in such a position and manner as to be plainly 
visible and this badge must be shown, if requested to the hirer of the vehicle and to 
any “authorised officer” or police officer for the purposes of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act, 1976. 
 

11. STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS – PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES 
 
Below are some of the statutory requirements for private hire vehicles. The list is not 
exhaustive and readers are recommended to consult the relevant legislation for 
further detail: 
 

11.1  Location of Vehicle 
 
The proprietor of a private hire vehicle licensed by the Council shall, within such 
period as the Council may by notice reasonably require, state in writing the address 
of every place where such private hire vehicle is kept when not in use, and shall, if 
the Council so requires, afford to them such facilities as may be reasonably 
necessary to enable them to cause such private hire vehicle to be inspected or 
tested there. 
 

11.2  Transfer of Ownership 
 
The proprietor shall notify the Council in writing of any changes in vehicle ownership 
within 14 days of such change taking place. 
 

11.3  Alteration of Vehicle 
 

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Page 94



  

21 
 

No material alterations or change in the specification, design, condition or 
appearance of the vehicle shall be made without the approval of the Council at any 
time while the licence is in force. 
 
 

Page 95



  

22 
 

Appendix A 
 
 

Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence Conditions 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Page 96



  

23 
 

Appendix B 
 
 

Private Hire Operators Licence Conditions 

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Page 97



  

24 
 

Appendix C 
 
 

Private Hire Drivers Licence Conditions 
 
 
 

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Page 98



  

25 
 

Appendix D 
 
 

Private Hire Vehicle Licence Conditions 
 
 
 
 

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Page 99



  

26 
 

Appendix E 
 
 

Byelaws Relating to Hackney Carriages 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Page 100



  

27 
 

Appendix F 
 
 

 Standard Conditions of an ‘Exemption Notice’ issued in respect of an 
Executive Private Hire Vehicle 
  
 

Guidance Notes 
 

An ‘Exemption Notice’ exempting a private hire vehicle proprietor from the requirement to 
display the exterior licence plate and door decals upon the vehicle, and the driver of that vehicle 
from the requirement to wear/display a private hire driver’s identification badge, is granted 
subject to the licensed private hire vehicle being operated in accordance with the conditions 
set out below. 
 
The vehicle must be an “executive” style car.  The service offered must be contract or account 
type work with private companies who require a chauffeur type executive level of service.  Such 
determination to be made by the Electoral and Licensing Officer whose decision is final. 
 
Failure to comply with these conditions may result in the withdrawal of the exemption notice at 
the discretion of the Electoral and Licensing Officer. 
 
Should it be the case that the Council’s standard private hire operator, proprietor or 
Drivers’ conditions conflict with the Council’s standard ‘Exemption Notice’ conditions, 
then for the period that the said notice remains in force, the standard ‘Exemption Notice’ 
conditions shall be deemed to apply. 
 
Standard Conditions 

 
1.   The Proprietor shall notify the Council immediately in writing if there is any material 

change in the nature of the use of the vehicle. 
2.   The ‘Exemption Notice’ shall be carried within the vehicle at all times, and presented 

for inspection at the request of an Authorised Officer of the Council, a Police Constable 
or the hirer. 

3.   The Proprietor shall not display in, on or from the vehicle any advertisement, sign, logo 
or insignia advertising the operating company or promoting the vehicle’s status as a 
licensed private hire vehicle, without the prior written approval of the Council. 

4.   The Private Hire Vehicle proprietors licence identification plate issued by the Council 
shall be carried in the luggage compartment of the vehicle at all times and produced for 
inspection at the request of an Authorised Officer of the Council, a Police Constable or 
the hirer. 

5.   A disc, which may be issued by the Council, shall be displayed on the inside of the front 
windscreen. 

6.   No taximeter shall be displayed within the vehicle at any time. 
7.   No table of fares/tariff card shall be displayed in the vehicle at any time. 
8.   The Proprietor shall ensure that the private hire vehicle driver carries his/her 

identification badge issued by the Council within the vehicle at all times and produced 
for inspection at the request of an Authorised officer of the Council, a Police Constable 
or the hirer. 

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Formatted: Font color: Green

Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
REPORT TO LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 
                                                                                                                                                                       
meeting date: TUESDAY, 1 NOVEMBER 2022 
title: HACKNEY CARRIAGE SIGNAGE 
submitted by: CHIEF EXECUTIVE  
principal author: STEPHEN BARKER, SOLICITOR 
 
1 PURPOSE 
 
1.1 To inform Committee of issues in relation to signage for Hackney Carriages, and to 

seek Committee’s views on proposals that might be put out to consultation. 
 
1.2 Relevance to the Council’s ambitions and priorities 
 

• Community Objectives  } 
 

• Corporate Priorities  }  
 

• Other Considerations  }  
 
2 BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 Currently, condition 25 of the Council’s 

Hackney Carriage Vehicle conditions reads as follows: 
 

25.  A Hackney Carriage must: 
a.  be equipped with a roof sign, of a standard size - width 500mm, height 120mm 

- such sign to be illuminated and bearing the word "TAXI" in black letters on 
yellow background and facing forward and on the red background facing 
backwards. 

b.  not save as set out in (a) above, be equipped with roof fittings, including 
advertisements except a wireless aerial which must be fitted in such a manner 
as to satisfy the Council; 

c.  have a sign stating 'no smoking' with minimum diameter of 70mm displayed in 
a visible position inside the vehicle. 

d.  not display any signs, notices, advertisements, plates, marks, numbers, letters, 
figures, symbols, emblems or devices whatsoever on, in or from the vehicle 
except as may be required by any statutory provision (including bye-laws) or 
required or permitted by these conditions. This condition does not apply to any 
indication on a taximeter fitted to the vehicle or to a sign which: 
i.  is displayed in, on or from the vehicle whilst it is stationary; 
ii.  contains no words or numbers other than the name and address of an 

operator of the vehicle or the name under which he carries on his 
business and its address; 

iii.  is displayed in pursuance of a prior arrangement made for the carriage 
of a passenger or passengers named in the sign. 

 
2.2 There is no requirement in relation to signage imposed by either the Town Police 

Clauses Act 1847 or the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. 
There is a requirement for a plate to be displayed in each case, but otherwise the issue 
of what signage is appropriate is a matter for determination by the licensing authority.  

 

DECISION 

The Council aims to be a well-managed 

Council, supporting the interests of 

licensees and residents. 

Page 103

Agenda Item 7



 

 

2.3 Conditions can include, for example, a requirement for particular livery which may 
assist the travelling public in identifying a hackney carriage (either traditional black or 
a more distinctive colour scheme).  Similarly, conditions can be imposed in relation to 
signage.  As stipulated in condition 25a, a roof sign must be displayed but, otherwise, 
condition 25d prohibits other signage except as allowed by the conditions themselves 
or any statutory provision. 

 
2.4 The corresponding condition in relation to signage for private hire vehicles in the Ribble 

Valley is set out below by way of comparison: 
 

20.  A private hire vehicle must: 
 a. not have any lights, plates, signs, advertisements or other fittings, save for those 

required under conditions or as approved by the Council; 
 b. not be equipped with any roof fitting or sign other than a wireless aerial, approved 

by the Council;  
c. not display the words "Taxi", "Taxi Cab" or "Cab";  
d. display door signs upon its rear doors stating "Private Hire Vehicle", "Advanced 

bookings only" and "Not insured unless prebooked" only and the lettering within 
those signs must be in bold black type and not less than 15mm in height. These 
signs must be displayed on private hire vehicles AT ALL TIMES (including 
when the vehicle is not in use).  

e. display door signs upon its front doors which shall only include the name of the 
private hire operator and its telephone number. If the words "Taxi", "Taxi 5 Cab" 
or "Cab" or "for hire" form part of the Operator's name these must be omitted 
from the sign; and  

f. display a sign stating "no smoking" with a minimum diameter of 70mm inside the 
vehicle in a position which is clearly visible to the hirer/passengers. 

 
3 ISSUES 
 
3.1 At the Annual Taxi meeting held on 21 September 2022, a private hire vehicle driver 

and operator commented upon the differences in signage, which he considered might 
create difficulties for the travelling public. Concern also arises about the activities of 
drivers of hackney carriages licensed by other authorities, which can be used for 
private hire purposes only in the Ribble Valley, but who may have plied for hire 
unlawfully.  

 
3.2 Consideration could, therefore, be given to amendment of the conditions to provide for 

the introduction of door signage for Ribble Valley licensed hackney carriages. This 
could, for example, read ‘Ribble Valley Licensed Hackney Carriage’, with the 
dimensions and size of writing being specified in a similar manner to the private hire 
vehicle signage. This would enable the traveling public to be aware that they were 
using a vehicle that conformed to local licensing requirements and conditions, as well 
as providing a means of identifying which vehicles are licensed to ply for hire in the 
Ribble Valley more easily.  

 
4 RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
4.1 The approval of this report may have the following implications 
 

• Resources – resources may be expended in officer time in carrying out any 
consultation. 

 
• Technical, Environmental and Legal - No implications identified. 

 

Page 104



 

 

• Political - No implications identified. 
 

• Reputation – No implications identified. 
 
•  Equality & Diversity – No implications identified.  

 
 
5 RECOMMENDED THAT COMMITTEE 
 
5.1 Approve the introduction of a requirement for door signage for Hackney Carriages 

reading “ Ribble Valley Licensed Hackney Carriage” 
 
5.2 Authorise the Head of Legal and Democratic Services to consult with licensees on 

amendment of condition 25 of the Hackney Carriage Vehicle conditions.  
 
STEPHEN BARKER MARSHAL SCOTT 
SOLICITOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE   
 
For further information please ask for Stephen Barker, extension 3216. 
 
 
 

Page 105



This page is intentionally left blank



RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
REPORT TO LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 
                                                                                                                                                                       
meeting date: TUESDAY, 1 NOVEMBER 2022 
title: HACKNEY CARRIAGE FARES UPDATE 
submitted by: MARSHAL SCOTT – CHIEF EXECUTIVE  
principal author: STEPHEN BARKER – SOLICITOR 
 
1 PURPOSE 
 
1.1 To inform Committee of the outcome of advertisement of proposed Hackney Carriage 

fares, the response to the advertisement and actions taken. 
 
1.2 Relevance to the Council’s ambitions and priorities: 
 

• Community Objectives -  } 
 

• Corporate Priorities -   } 
 

• Other Considerations -  } 
 
2 BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 Members will recall that at the meeting on 6 September 2022, revised Hackney 

Carriage fares were approved, and the Head of Legal and Democratic Services was 
authorised to advertise the proposed table of fares as required by legislation. 

 
3 ISSUES 
 
3.1 The advertisement was published on Thursday, 15 September 2022. 
 
3.2 At the annual taxi meeting on 21 September 2022, Hackney Carriage drivers 

welcomed the increase in fares, together with the proposal for annual review. 
 
3.3 In the absence of objections to the advertised fares, the new table of fares has 

operated from 1 October 2022. 
 
3.4 Whilst the table of fares sets out the normal fare which should be displayed on the 

taximeter, the proprietor or driver of a Hackney Carriage can agree a lower charge 
with the passenger/customer, if they so wish. 

 
4 CONCLUSION 
 
4.1  Committee is asked to note the contents of this report. 
 
 

 

STEPHEN BARKER MARSHAL SCOTT 
SOLICITOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE   
 
For further information please ask for Stephen Barker, extension 3216. 

INFORMATION

Consider of these issues will promote the 
Council’s aim to be a well-managed Council.

Page 107

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
REPORT TO LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 
                                                                                                                                                                       
meeting date: 1  NOVEMBER 2022 
title: TAXI/PRIVATE HIRE LICENSING OPERATION 
submitted by: CHIEF EXECUTIVE  
principal author: STEPHEN BARKER, SOLICITOR  
 
1 PURPOSE 
 
1.1 To inform Committee of the results of an inspection of licensed private hire and 

hackney carriage vehicles. 
 
1.2 Relevance to the Council’s ambitions and priorities 
 

• Community Objectives  } 
 

• Corporate Priorities  } 
 

• Other Considerations  } 
 
2 BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 On 14 October 2022, the Council’s Taxi Enforcement Officer carried out an inspection 

of licensed private hire and hackney carriage vehicles, in a joint operation with the 
Police and Vehicle and Operator Services Agency. 

 
3 ISSUES 
 
3.1 Ten vehicles were inspected, eight of which were licensed by Ribble Valley Borough 

Council. All of those eight vehicles were found to be of the required standard. 
 
3.2 However, the two vehicles licensed by other authorities had defects, resulting in the 

issue of prohibition notices. Once vehicle had a nearside front tyre below the legal limit, 
and the other had a wheel nut missing from its near side rear wheel.  Both defects 
were rectified, and the prohibition notices lifted. The authorities concerned have been 
notified. 

 
4 RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
4.1 The approval of this report may have the following implications 
 

• Resources – No implications identified. 
 

• Technical, Environmental and Legal – Improved control of licence holders should 
improve public safety. 

 
• Political - No implications identified. 

 
• Reputation – Improved public safety will enhance the Council’s reputation. 
 
•  Equality & Diversity – No implications identified. 

 

INFORMATION

Consideration of these issues will promote the 
Council’s aim to be a well-managed Council. 

Page 109

Agenda Item 9



 

 

 
5 CONCLUSION 
 
5.1 Committee is asked to note the contents of this report.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
STEPHEN BARKER MARSHAL SCOTT 
SOLICITOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE   
 
For further information please ask for Stephen Barker, extension 3216. 
 
 
 

Page 110



 

 
 

Minutes of Sub-Committee of the Licensing Committee 
 
Meeting Date:  Wednesday, 10 August 2022, starting at 10.00 am 
Present:  Councillor S Brunskill (Chair) 
 
Councillors: 
 
J Alcock 
 

I Brown 
 

 
In attendance: Solicitor, Licensing Officers (x2) (Alcohol and Entertainment)   
 

198 WELCOME  
 

199 APOLOGIES AND RE-CONSTITUTION OF THE COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP  
 
There were no apologies. 
 

200 DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY, OTHER REGISTRABLE AND 
NON REGISTRABLE INTERESTS  
 
There were no declarations of disclosable pecuniary, or other registrable and non-
registrable interests. 
 

201 PREMISES LICENCE APPLICATION - UNIT 6, UNION MILL, SABDEN  
 
The Sub-Committee met to consider the application of Ribble Valley Gin Company for 
a premises licence in respect of Unit 6, Union Mill, Watt Street, Sabden BB7 9ED. 
 
The Sub-Committee considered the contents of the report of the Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services dated 10 August 2022 and its appendices. 
 
The Council’s Solicitor introduced the premises licence application and confirmed that 
3 written representations had been made by way of objection as detailed in the report, 
however, there were no objectors in attendance. The report confirmed the requested 
opening hours of the premises being Sunday to Wednesday 1000hrs-1600hrs, 
Thursday 1000hrs – 2100hrs, Friday and Saturday 1000hrs-2200hrs. The 24 hour 
sale of alcohol was requested for internet and telephone orders.    
 
The premises licence applicant, Ms Justine Moyes, gave verbal representation to the 
Committee and explained that Ribble Valley Gin Company was currently producing 
their product from a residential property outbuilding, which they had outgrown, and 
they were therefore looking to expand the business. In addition, the business wanted 
to offer distillery tours, tastings, and gin school to take place on prebooked dates. Ms 
Ruth Harrison also attended with the applicant and pointed out that the intention was 
not to open a bar, where visitors can drink unlimited amounts, but to offer refined 
tastings to customers with an interest in their product and wanting to learn more about 
it, therefore, drunken behaviour would not be anticipated or acceptable. 
 
The applicant responded to several questions raised by the Committee and explained 
that the business would be working with the Council’s Tourism Officer to advertise 
and promote tourism to the area. They would actively ensure the area around the 
building is kept tidy and provide a facility to dispose of cigarette buts if required. 
Premises staff would offer to arrange taxis for customers as required and were 
looking at options such as a ‘designated driver’ tour, where a non-drinker would be 
offered the option of taking their samples home or trying alcohol free alternatives. The 
applicant also explained their plan on how waste will be stored and locked and was 

Page 111

Agenda Item 10



 

 
 

aware of the times in which it would be permitted to dispose of waste, such as bottles, 
according to the licensing conditions. The premises would expect minimal footfall in 
the shop but would like locals to have the option of buying directly.  
 
The Council’s Solicitor noted the contents of the report, being that the applicant had 
met with the Lancashire Constabulary and agreed to an additional 6 licensing 
conditions, and Environmental Health had recommended 2 further conditions which 
had also been agreed. 
 
The Licensing Sub-Committee gave careful consideration to the written 
representations made in objection to the application, and the verbal representations 
by the applicant.  The Sub-Committee also considered the requirements of the 
Licensing Act 2003, the Statutory Guidance, the licensing objectives, the relevant 
regulations, and the Council's licensing policy.  
 
Having considered all the above the Sub-Committee resolved to grant the Applicant’s 
application for a premises licence as applied for.  
 
RESOLVED: That the sub-committee grant the application. 
 
The Sub-Committee decision is available at 
https://www.ribblevalley.gov.uk/downloads/file/3197/unit-6-union-mill-sabden 
 

202 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
There were no items under this heading. 
 
 
The meeting closed at 10.15 am 
 
If you have any queries on these minutes please contact the committee clerk, 
Rebecca Tait Rebecca.Tait@ribblevalley.gov.uk. 

Page 112

https://www.ribblevalley.gov.uk/downloads/file/3197/unit-6-union-mill-sabden


 

 
 

Minutes of Sub-Committee of the Licensing Committee 
 
Meeting Date:  Thursday, 22 September 2022, starting at  4.00 pm 
Present:  Councillor S Brunskill (Chair) 
 
Councillors: 
 
S Brunskill 
I Brown 

A Humphreys 
 

 
In attendance: Solicitor and Jane Horsfield  
 

289 WELCOME  
 

290 APOLOGIES AND RE-CONSTITUTION OF THE COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP  
 
There were no apologies. 
  

291 DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY, OTHER REGISTRABLE AND 
NON REGISTRABLE INTERESTS  
 
There were no declarations of disclosable pecuniary, or other registrable and non-
registrable interests. 
  

292 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
That by virtue of the next items of business being exempt information under 
paragraph 1 of part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 that press 
and public be now excluded from the meeting. 
  

293 LICENCE HEARING - TAXI  
 
The Sub-committee received a report from the Head of Legal and Democratic 
Services informing them of an application for a private hire driver’s licence and 
requesting that the Sub-committee determine whether the applicant was a fit and 
proper person to hold such a licence. 
  
The applicant attended the hearing along with a representative. The representative 
made verbal submissions to the Committee and asked the applicant to confirm further 
details and the circumstances in relation to the offences which had been recorded. 
The applicant also responded to questions by the Sub-committee. 
  
The Sub-committee, having taken account of all the submissions, a character 
reference, the provisions of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976, and the Council’s Statement of Policy and Guidelines on Relevant Convictions, 
concluded that the applicant was not a fit and proper person and that a licence should 
not be granted.  
  
RESOLVED: 
  
That the private hire driver’s licence application be refused. 
  
 
The meeting closed at 4.35 pm 
 
If you have any queries on these minutes please contact the committee clerk, 
Rebecca Tait Rebecca.Tait@ribblevalley.gov.uk. 

Page 113



This page is intentionally left blank



                 SAFETY ADVISORY GROUP MEETING  13.10.22 
 

MINUTES OF THE RV EVENT SAFETY ADVISORY GROUP 
THURSDAY 13 OCTOBER 2022 @ 2.00pm  

 
 
PRESENT: Adrian Harper (Chair) RVBC 
 Mair Hill  RVBC Legal 
 Jason Middleton RVBC Licensing enforcement 
 Rebecca Tait RVBC  
 Matt Riding RVBC Env Health 
 Sarah Wells RVBC Partnership Officer 
 Liz Mason NW Ambulance 
 Elizabeth Riding Lancs Fire & Rescue 
 Glen Dinsdale Lancs Fire & Rescue 
 Gary Makin  Police (Highways) 
 Insp Claire Pearson Police 
 Sgt Kevin Day Police 
 Sgt Duncan Hall Police 
   
 Jamie Foxon Beatherder 
 Chris Garside Beatherder 
 John Pratt Beatherder 
 
 
 

  

 ACTION 
APOLOGIES 
 
Apologies were received from Eddie Mills (LCC). 
 
BEATHERDER 14 – 17 JULY - DEBRIEF 
 
Representatives from Beatherder attended the meeting. 
 
Jamie Foxon reported that the event was very successful. They had wondered how their 
systems, staff and attendees would be post-covid. Opening on the Thursday had 
improved the traffic situation on the Friday with less congestion getting onto the site. 
There had been no blue lights necessary off site. Vanguardia had managed the sound 
systems again with no complaints during the weekend (only post event). Tickets had 
gone on sale for 2023 (13 – 16 July) and there was already a good take up. They stated 
that no change to the number of days was planned for next year. 
 
Police – a good well managed event without incident. Police officers on site in plain 
clothes. The lay by had been cleared regularly. Traffic management needs to be re-
visited with renewed support from Police. The organisers had been let down by LCC 
who had the wrong regulations on the TTRO and had to be changed during the weekend 
for the Police to be able to enforce. One neighbouring complainant had been visited 
daily by Sgt Day. 
 
Env Health – the same complainant had submitted photographs of litter that had blown 
onto his land and suggested a wider buffet zone. Beatherder informed the group that the 
steel fence had been left up an extra week to try and combat litter/left tents from blowing 
onto his land. Litter collection was carried out at the end of the event. It was 
acknowledged that Beatherder try to put measures in place to prevent this happening.  
 
The improved fencing/security had also helped with preventing outsiders getting into the 
event site. 
 
Env staff had worked alongside Vanguardia and there had been no complaints received 
during the weekend, however one had been received 2 weeks later about the late finish 
time on Friday and Saturday (4am) and about the fireworks. They had been added to the 
pre-event letter drop list so that they would be notified of exact firework times next year. 
 
Beatherder representatives left the meeting. 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 115

Agenda Item 11



                 SAFETY ADVISORY GROUP MEETING  13.10.22 
 

PAST EVENTS 
 
Ribble Valley Scooter Rally – 24 September – there was some question as to whether a  
 
TPCA was adequate for this event as there had been issues in Market Place with 
pedestrians in the road. A TTRO would allow proper closure and authority to control 
parking. It was also suggested that more roads would need to be closed to allow 
pedestrians to travel across Castle Street and Market Place safely. 
 
Longridge Soapbox – 18 September – a well organised event – a good organisation to 
deal with. 
 
UPCOMING EVENTS OF NOTE 
 
Bonfires – the only one of concern was at Gisburne Park. A TTRO rather than a TPCA 
would be required to control parking on Mill Lane. Their Traffic management Plan was 
much improved with adequate signing and personnel on the A59. GM would liaise with 
them on this. More parking had been created on site.  
 
An event plan was required by NWAS (LFR had already seen this – some concerns 
about access/egress for evacuating the site). 
 
It would not be policed specifically but as part of a patrol plan. 
 
Remembrance – it was noted that the Council had been informed that the parade at 
Billington was not happening this year.  
 
The Police Inspector informed the group that they would be stretched for covering 
Remembrance services this year as it was the same day as the Burnley v Blackburn 
football match (12.30pm ko) 
 
DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
To be arranged for April/May 2023 @ 2pm in the Council Chamber, 13 Church Street, 
Clitheroe 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 116


	Agenda
	2 To approve the minutes of the previous meeting
	5 National Register of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver Revocations (NR3) Policy
	REPORT TO LICENSING COMMITTEE
	NR3 appendix 1

	6 Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles Disabled Persons Act 2022
	REPORT TO LICENSING COMMITTEE
	5.1	Approve and authorise the Head of Legal and Democratic Services to consult upon the proposed amendments to:
		Conditions of licence for Private Hire Operators as at Appendix 1
		Conditions of licence for Private Hire Driver’s as at Appendix 2
		Conditions of licence for Hackney Carriage Driver’s as at Appendix 3
		Private Hire Infringement Scheme as at Appendix 4
		Hackney Carriage Infringement Scheme as at Appendix 5
		Private Hire and Hackney Carriage Licence Policy as at Appendix 6
	Appendix 1Private Hire Operator's Licence Conditions
	Appendix 2 Private hire Driver's Licence Conditions 2022
	Appendix 3 Hackney Carriage Driver's Licence Conditions 2022
	Appendix 4 INFRINGEMENT POINTS SCHEME October 2022 - Private Hire
	Appendix 5 infringement scheme 2022 - Hackney carriages
	Appendix 6 POLICY FOR LICENSING HACKNEY AND PRIVATE HIRE 2022

	7 Hackney Carriage Signage
	REPORT TO LICENSING COMMITTEE

	8 Hackney Carriage Fares Update
	REPORT TO LICENSING COMMITTEE

	9 Taxi/Private Hire Vehicle Licensing Operation
	REPORT TO LICENSING COMMITTEE

	10 Minutes of Licensing Sub-Committee
	Minutes , 22/09/2022 Sub-Committee of the Licensing Committee

	11 Minutes of the Ribble Valley Event Safety Advisory Group (ESAG)
	THURSDAY 13 OCTOBER 2022 @ 2.00pm


